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FROM THE EXECUTIVE CHAIRMANS’ DESK 
 
Dear Shareholders, 
 
It gives me a great pleasure to present 
before you another set of good 
numbers with a few highest ever in 
your Company's history, in the face of 
a challenging business environment. 
 
Your company has reported 'highest' 
on various parameters, that is, 
Revenue, EBIDTA and Profit after Tax. 
 
Committed to Deliver  
 
I am happy to share that our 
performance reflects the inherent 
fundamental strengths of our business. 
On a Standalone basis, the Company 
achieved Total Revenue of  11,984.77 
Lakhs as against  10,003.39 Lakhs in 
the previous year, thereby registering a  
growth of 19.81%. EBIDTA for the year 
under review was  1952.76 Lakhs, 
representing a growth of 32.23%. The 
net profit for the year ended March 31, 
2018 increased from  771.71 Lakhs to 

 1097.50 Lakhs, showing a remarkable 
growth of 42.22%. 
 
The consolidated Total Revenues 
enhanced to  13,499.89 Lakhs in 
2017-18 as against  10,573.32 Crores 
in previous year, resulting in a growth 
of 27.68%. Net profit for FY 2017-18 
stood at  1164.62 Lakhs and Earnings 
Per Share at  21.61.  
 
Dividend 
 
The Board has recommended final 
dividend @20% (i.e.  2 per equity 
share of face value of  10/- each) for 

the year 2017-18 subject to approval 
of members. 
 
Capacity Expansion 
 
Innovation cannot be an end in itself. It 
has to reach customers across 
geographies and fulfill their needs. To 
meet the growing demand for 
innovative products from our 
customers, we have aggressively 
focused on scalability. During the year, 
the company has set up a Silicone 
Foam plant with an expenditure of  
65 Lakhs having capacity of  15 
Lakhs/kg per annum, in the existing 
factory premises of the company at 
Aghai, Kalyan. The foam is an another 
variant of seat & berth used by Indian 
Railways. 
 
Way Forward 

As the Indian railway is the largest 
buyer of the Company’s product, any 
change in policies of Indian Railways 
whether positive or negative, has a 
direct impact on the Company’s 
business. The Government of India has 
focused on investing on railway 
infrastructure by making investor-
friendly policies. It has moved quickly 
to enable Foreign Direct Investment 
(FDI) in railways to improve 
infrastructure for freight and high-
speed trains. Government of India’s 
focus on infrastructure is a major 
factor which will accelerate growth of 
Railway Industry.  

The future of the industry looks 
promising as the total capital and 
development expenditure of Railways 



has been pegged at  1.48 Lakh crores 
in the Budget 2018-19. 
 
Our Focus of engaging deeply with our 
customers has helped us to 
continuously outpace the industry. 
Going forward, we will continue to 
focus on cost efficiencies, quality 
control, market penetration and 
technology upgradation. We will also 
concentrate on expanding the value-
added product portfolio by focusing 
more on innovation in line with 
changing aspirations of society. 
 
Acknowledgments   
 
Overall, it was another year of 
sustained high performance with 
considerable achievements across our 
business. None of this would have 
been possible without the dedication 
and determination of our people. I 
would like to thank each and every 
employee and those working with us 
across the value chain for their 
commitment and service to the 
Company. 
 

Many Thanks 
Saleh Mithiborwala 
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         (1) Indian          
a) Individual/HUF 1715550 0 1715550 31.83 1844050 0 1844050 34.21 2.38 
b) Central Govt.or 
 State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 

c) Bodies Corporates 668000 0 668000 12.39 668000 0 668000 12.39 0 
d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
e) Any Other 
(Directors/Directors 
Relatives) 

538600 0 538600 9.99 538600 0 538600 9.99 0 

         
a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 

         

         
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
g) FIIS 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
h) Foreign Venture 
 Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 

         
a)           
i) Indian 176479 153500 329979 6.12 98799 2800 101599 1.88 (4.24) 
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
b)           i) Individual shareholders 
holding  nominal share 
capital upto Rs.2 lakhs 

134227 77900 212127 3.94 235822 126300 362122 6.72 2.78 

ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs. 2 
lakhs 

1923688 0 1923688 35.69 1771534 102300 1873834 34.76 (0.93) 

         
c-i) Clearing Member 247 0 247 0.00 1201 0 1201 0.02 0.02 
c-ii) NRI 2109 0 2109 0.04 529 0 529 0.01   (0.03) 
c-iii) Director 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 
c-iv) Trusts 0 0 0 0.00 365 0 365 0.01 0.00 
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Annexure 6 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 
Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is provided hereunder: 

 
(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

 
(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy  

 
Your Company makes continuous efforts for conservation of energy through various 
practices.  
 
Some of the measures for conservation of energy implemented are as follows : 
 

 Implemented RO plant for Recycling & re-use of Water. 
 

 Replacement of LED Tube Lights for energy saving.  
 

(ii) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy : Nil 
 

(iii)  Capital investment on energy and conservation equipments : 
 

Modification of Equipments & their drives is being done regularly to reduce energy 
consumption. 

 
(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  

 
(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption: Nil 

 
(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, Cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution: Nil 
 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the financial year) 
 

a) The details of technology imported- Cone Calorimeter with oxygen analyser to 
find the Marhe was imported by the Company on September 23, 2015 from M/s. East 



Sun Limited situated at Unit D88, 11/F, Wing T at Commercial building, 97 Bonham 
Stand East, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. 

 
b) The year of import- 2015-2016. 

 
c) Whether the technology has been fully absorbed- Yes. 

 
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof- Not applicable 

 
(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil  

 
(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

            
 2017-18 2016-17 

Amount in  Amount in  

Actual Foreign Exchange earnings Nil Nil 

Actual Foreign Exchange outgo   

a) Payments for Import Purchases 283.12 20.19 

b) Advance for Imports Purchase - 29.69 

c) Travelling Expenses 11.77 26.93 

Total 294.89 76.81 

 
 

                                            On behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 

  
SALEH N MITHIBORWALA 

Date: July 11, 2018                                 Chairman and Chief Financial Officer  

Place: Mumbai                     DIN: 00171171 



Annexure 7  
 

Disclosure pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014 
 
(i) Disclosure under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
a)  
Name of the 
Director 

Designation Remuneration 
of Directors / 
KMP for the 
year ended  
March 31, 2018                
( ) 

Ratio to 
Median 
Remuneration 

% increase in 
remuneration 
for the year 
ended  March 
31, 2018 

Mr. Saleh N. 
Mithiborwala 

Chairman and CFO 
NA NA 

Refer Note 1 
below 

Mr. Karim N. 
Mithiborwala 

Managing Director 
NA NA 

Mr. Vali N. 
Mithiborwala 

Executive Director 
NA NA 

Mr. Mustufa S. 
Pardawala 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Nil Nil 

Mrs. Deepa Raut Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Nil Nil 

Mr. Suresh Mane Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Nil Nil 

Ms. Priya Bhagat Company Secretary 3,70,000 32.47 
 

  
Note :  
 
1. The Executive Directors of the Company are not paid any Remuneration. Hence, 

calculation of percentage increase in remuneration is not applicable.  
 
(b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial    

year 2017-18- 18.99% 
 
(c)  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company- 221 as on March 31, 

2018. 
 
(d) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof. 
 
Average percentage increase in salaries of employees other than Key Managerial 
Personnel is 46.35%. There is no increase in the remuneration of managerial personnel in 
comparison to the average increase in the salary of other employees. 

 
 
 



 
(e) We affirm that the remuneration paid during the year 2017-18 is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
                               

(ii) Disclosure under Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 

a) Details of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn 
during 2017-18: 

 
Details of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn during 
2017-18 will be provided on request.  
 
As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report 
and Accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled thereto excluding the 
said information of top ten employees. The said details of top ten employees will be 
available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company 
during the business hours on working days of the Company upto the date of ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such 
member may write to the Company Secretary in this regard. 

 
b) List of employees of your Company employed throughout the Financial Year 

2017-18 and were paid remuneration not less than one crore and two lakh rupees: 
 

During the year under review, there were no employees of the Company drawing 
remuneration of  1.2 Crore and above p.a. 

 
c) Employees employed for the part of the year and were paid remuneration during 

the Financial Year 2017-18 at a rate which in aggregate was not less than eight 
lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month: 

 

During the year under review, there were no employees of the Company drawing 
remuneration of  8.5 Lakhs per month and above being employed for the part of the 
year. 

 
                                 On behalf of the Board of Directors 

  
  

SALEH N MITHIBORWALA 

Date: July 11, 2018                                      Chairman and Chief Financial Officer  
Place: Mumbai               DIN: 00171171 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To, 
The Members of Oriental Veneer Products Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying 
standalone financial statements of Oriental 
Veneer Products Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss Statement, including Statement 
of the Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “Standalone 
Financial Statement.”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the matters stated in 
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with  respect to the preparation 
of these Standalone Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view of the 
Financial Position, Financial Performance 
including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes 
in Equity of the company in  accordance 
with accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate 
accounting  policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and  

prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial control that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these Standalone Financial Statements 
based on our audit. We have taken into 
account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 
We conducted our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements in accordance with 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, as specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the 
standalone Financial Statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the 
Standalone Financial Statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the 



auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Company’s preparation of 
the Standalone Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the Financial Statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to   the 
explanations given to us, the Standalone 
Financial Statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2018, its Profit including Other 
comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and 
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we give in the 'Annexure-A' a
statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act,
we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief

were necessary for the purpose of our 
audit; 

b. In our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The standalone Balance Sheet, the
standalone Profit and Loss Statement,
and the standalone Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of
account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements
comply with applicable Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of written representations
received from the directors as on
March 31, 2018, taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2018, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report
in ‘Annexure B’. Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g. In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanation given to us, we report as
under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the



Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014: 

(i) The Company has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial
statements as referred to in Note
37 to standalone financial
statements.

(ii) The Company has made provision,
as required under the applicable

law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, 
on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts. 

(iii) There has not been an occasion in
case of the company during the
year under report to transfer any
sums to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund. The question of
delay in transferring such sums
does not arise.

For Amarnath Sharma & Co.   
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 100300W 

A  Nath Sharma   
Proprietor  
Membership No. 039579 
Date:- May 24, 2018 
Place:-Mumbai  



ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements" of our report of even date.) 

i 
a. The  Company has maintained 

proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

b. The Company has a regular
programme for physical verification
in a phased periodic manner, which,
in our opinion, is   reasonable having
regards to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

c. According to information and
explanations given by the
management, the title deeds/lease
deeds of immovable properties
included in Property, Plant and
Equipment are held in the name of
the Company.

ii The management has conducted 
physical verification of inventory at 
reasonable intervals during the year 
and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such physical verification. 

iii 
a. The Company has granted loans to

one company covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The terms and
conditions of loan which in our
opinion and according to the
information and explanations given
to us, the terms and conditions are
generally not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

b. As per information and explanation
given to us, the principal/interest
amounts are repayable on demand
and there is no repayment schedule.

c. As per information and explanation
given to us, the principal/interest
amounts are repayable on demand
and hence the amount has not
overdue for more than 90 days.

iv In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, and considering the legal opinion 
taken by the Company on applicability 
of section 185 and section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 of the 
Companies Act 2013. Further, based 
on the information and explanations 
given to us, being an infrastructure 
company, provision of section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable to the Company and hence 
not commented upon. 

v The Company has not accepted any 
deposits within the meaning of 
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the 
Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

vi We have broadly reviewed the cost 
records maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 
prescribed by the central government 
under section 148(1)(d) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and are of the 
opinion that, Prima Facie, the 
prescribed accounts and cost records 
have been maintained. we have, 
however, not made a detailed 
examination of the cost records with a 



view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete. 

vii 
a. According to Information and

explanation given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty
of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues have
generally regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few
cases.

b. According to the information and
explanations provided to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Service Tax, Sales-Tax, Goods
and Services Tax, Duty of Custom,
Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
Cess and Other Statutory Dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from
the date they became payable
except as below;

Name of 
Statute 

Nature 
of Dues 

Period to Amount 
( ) 

Remarks, If any 

GST Act, 
2017 

GST August, 2017 
to October, 
2017 

4,11,172 Company has not paid GST under 
RCM due to non clear of certain 
notification under GST. 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

Advance 
Tax 

June, 2017 
to 
September, 
2017 

2,17,24,091 Company has not paid advance tax 
for the first & second quarter of the 
F.Y.2017-18 but has paid  4 Crore 
in the fourth quarter of the 
F.Y.2017-18. 

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961 

DDT Financial 
Year 2016-
17 

21,94,676 Company has not paid DDT of the 
F.Y.2016-17 

c. As per information and explanation
provided to us, the following are the
details of disputed Tax liabilities and

the forum in which they are pending 
[referred in Note 39 to the 
standalone financial statement] : 

Financial 
Year 

Amount 
( ) 

Type of 
Liability 

Forum Where Dispute  is Pending 

1997-98 1,427,168 
Central 
Excise 

Appeal Filed with Custom, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai 

viii In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not defaulted in 
the repayment of loans or borrowings 
to banks. The Company does not have 
any loans or borrowings from financial 
institutions or government and has not 
issued any debentures. 

ix Based on the information and 
explanations given to us by the 
management, the company has raised 
new term loans during the year. The 
term Loans outstanding at the 
beginning of the year and those raised 
during the year have been applied for 
the purposes for which they were 
raised.  



x To the best of our knowledge and 
according to the information and 
explanations given to us, no fraud by 
the Company and no fraud on the 
Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during 
the year. 

xi In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not paid / 
provided any managerial remuneration 
during the year and hence reporting 
under clause 3 (xi) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

xii The Company is not a Nidhi Company 
and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii In our opinion and according to the 

related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

xiv During the year, the Company has not 
made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures and 
hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of 
the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xv In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, during the year the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its Directors or 
persons connected to its Directors and 
hence provisions of Section 192 of the 
Act are not applicable. 

xvi The Company is not required to be 
registered under Section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

information and explanations given to 
us the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where 
applicable, for all transactions with the  

For Amarnath Sharma & Co.   
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 100300W 

A  Nath Sharma   
Proprietor  
Membership No. 039579 
Date:- May 24, 2018 
Place:-Mumbai  



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of 
Oriental Veneer Products Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in 
conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for 
Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is 
responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance 
Note’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under 
the Act 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Act and the Guidance Note, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with the ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the 
auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our 
information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2018, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note. 

For Amarnath Sharma & Co.   
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 100300W 

A  Nath Sharma   
Proprietor  
Membership No. 039579 
Date:- May 24, 2018 
 Place:-Mumbai 



(` In Lakhs)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Notes ` `
ASSETS
Non - Current assets
Property , Plant  and Equipment 3 909.96 737.91 
Intangible assets 3 -  1.08  
Financial assets
Investments 4 880.25 880.25 
Loans 5 84.65 88.95 
Total Non-Current Assets 1,874.86         1,708.19         

Current Assets
Inventories 6 2,464.17  1,370.11  
Financial assets
Trade receivables 7 3,651.90  2,495.02  
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 2,824.86  2,692.16  
Loans 9 1,523.91  334.73 
Other current assets 10 73.54 127.60 
Total Current Assets 10,538.37       7,019.62         
Total Assets 12,413.23       8,727.81         

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 11 539.03 539.03 
Other Equity 12 3,683.86  2,716.11  
Total Equity 4,222.89         3,255.14         

Liabilities
Non - Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
 Borrowings 13 10.70 43.83 
Provisions 14 49.95 46.35 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 87.78 72.93 
Total Non - Current liabilities 148.42            163.11            

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 3,835.38  3,187.11  
Trade Payables 17 3,085.75  1,276.46  
Other financial liabilities 18 381.57 276.55 
 Provisions 19 739.22 569.44 
Total Current Liabilities 8,041.92         5,309.56         
Total Equity & Liabilities 12,413.23       8,727.81         
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As per our report of even date
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Firm registration number: 100300W  

Saleh N. Mithiborwala
Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Amarnath Sharma Managing Director
Proprietor DIN: 00171326
Membership no. 039579
Place : Mumbai Priya V Bhagat
Date : May 24, 2018 Company Secretary

M No. A46398

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

Significant accounting policies and Notes to the financial 
statement



(` In Lakhs)
Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Income
Revenue from operations 20 11,769.53  9,811.72  
Other Income 21 215.24 191.67 
Total Income 11,984.77       10,003.39       

Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 22 7,080.76  5,628.17  
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 22 751.15  615.31  

23 (254.50)  (264.69)  

Excise duty & Service Tax 141.83 569.57 
Employee Benefits Expense 24 967.51  798.19  
Finance Costs 25 167.87  176.42  
Depreciation and Amortisation 26 94.78  97.85  
Other Expenses 27 1,345.25  1,180.05  
Total Expenses 10,294.67       8,800.87         
Profit Before Tax 1,690.11         1,202.52         
Tax expenses
Current tax (577.76)  (422.37) 
Deferred tax (14.85)  (8.43)  
Total tax expenses (592.60)           (430.81)           

Profit for the year 1,097.50         771.71            

Other comprehensive income:

- - 

- - 

- (27.61) 

- (20.86) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,097.50         723.24            

Basic (in `) 28 20.36 13.42 
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W  Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Statement of standalone profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

Significant accounting policies and Notes to the financial 
statement

i. Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit
and Loss
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

iv. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss

Earnings per equity share of face value of `  10 each

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-
Progress and Stock-in-Trade 

iii. Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit
and Loss



A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
(` In Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. April 01, 2016 Changes in Equity 
Share capital during 
the year 2016-17

Balance at the end of 
the reporting period 
i.e. March 31, 2017

Changes in Equity 
Share capital during 
the year 2017-18

Balance at the end of 
the reporting period 
i.e. March 31, 2018

                                                                                      539.03                          -                     539.03                          -                     539.03 

B. OTHER EQUITY
(` In Lakhs)

Capital Reserve General Reserve Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. April 01, 
2016

                    30.25                   359.54 1,684.37               2,074.15               

Total Comprehensive Income for the year                          -                            -   723.90                 723.90                 
Effect of transition to Ind AS 48.47                   48.47                   
Dividend                          -                            -   107.81-                 107.81-                 
Tax on Dividend                          -                            -   21.95-                   21.95-                   
Transfer to/from Retained Earnings                          -                  2,326.33 2,326.33-               -                     0.00 
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. March 31, 
2017

30.25                  2,685.86                                      -   2,716.77             

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. April 01, 
2017

                    30.25                2,685.86                          -   2,716.77               

Total Comprehensive Income for the year                          -                            -   1,097.50               1,097.50               
Dividend                          -                            -   107.81-                 107.81-                 
Tax on Dividend                          -                            -   21.95-                   21.95-                   
Transfer to/from Retained Earnings                          -                     967.75 967.75-                 -                      
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. March 31, 
2018

30.25                  3,653.61             - 3,683.86             

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W  Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Reserve & Surplus Total

Statement Of Changes In Equity For The Year Ended March 31, 2018



(` In Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Cash flow from operating activities
1,690.11 1,202.52 

94.78 97.85 
167.87 176.42 

Profit on sale of Vehicle (2.21) - 
Dividend Income (0.83) (0.79) 

(198.73) (190.30) 
1,750.99  1,285.70 

2,102.54 (519.34) 
(1,156.88)            (357.54) 
(1,184.88)            983.40 

Decrease / (increase) in Inventories (1,094.06)            540.93 
54.07 (98.23) 

471.78 1,834.94 
(592.60) (430.81) 

(120.82)  1,404.13 
- - 

(120.82)  1,404.13 

(266.34) (113.86) 
Sale of Fixed Assets 2.80 - 

- (50.00) 
198.73 190.30 

Dividend received 0.83 0.79 
(63.98)  27.22  

Call Received - 0.19 
Dividend proposed with Taxes (129.75) (129.75) 
Long/Short Term Borrowing Taken/Repayment during the year (net) 615.13 (1,134.26) 

(167.87) (176.42) 
317.51 (1,440.24)  
132.70 (8.88)  

2,692.16 2,701.04 
2,824.86  2,692.16 

11.61 24.97 
18.04 26.96 

Fixed Deposits 2,795.21 2,640.23 
Total cash and bank balances 2,824.86  2,692.16 

Significant accounting policies and Notes to the financial statements 2

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Cash generated from /(used in) operations

Profit before tax  and after prior period items
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation
Interest and Financial expense

Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital:
Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities/provisions
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / (increase) in short-term loans and advances

Decrease / (increase) in other current assets

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Cash flow before extraordinary item
Extra ordinary item
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

Interest and financial Expenses paid
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advances

Purchase of  investments
Interest received

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B)
Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
With banks- on current account



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended March 31, 2018 

Note 1 - Corporate information 

Oriental Veneer Products Ltd. company 
incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 [Earlier Companies 
Act, 1956] on 8th March 1991 as a Private 
Limited Company in the name of 
"ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS PRIVATE 
LIMITED". The name of Company 
subsequently changed from "ORIENTAL 
VENEER PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED" to 
" ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LIMITED" 
as on 3rd July 1995 and it became as public 
Ltd. company, Limited by Shares. 

The company is engaged in the 
manufacturing, buying and selling of all 
type Recron, Seat & Berth, Compreg 
Boards and also engaged in trading of 
timber woods and all its products. The 
Company caters to both domestic and 
international markets. 

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial 
statements 

These financial statements of the 
Company have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter. For all 
periods up to and including the year 
ended March 31, 2018, the Company 
prepared its financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting standards 
notified under the section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 
2018 are the first the Company has 
prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer 
to note 40 for information on how the 
Company adopted Ind AS. 

The financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except 
for the following assets and liabilities 
which have been measured at fair value: 

A. Derivative financial instruments;
B. Certain financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (refer
accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

In addition, the carrying values of 
recognized assets and liabilities 
designated as hedged items in fair value 
hedges that would otherwise be carried at 
amortized cost are adjusted to record 
changes in the fair values attributable to 
the risks that are being hedged in effective 
hedge relationships. 

2.2 Current versus non-current 
classification 

The Company presents assets and 
liabilities in the balance sheet based on 
current/ non-current classification. An 
asset is treated as current when it is: 

A. Expected to be realised or intended to
be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle.

B. Held primarily for the purpose of
trading.

C. Expected to be realised within twelve
months after the reporting period, or

D. Cash or cash equivalents unless
restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-
current. 



A liability is current when: 
 
A. It is expected to be settled in normal 

operating cycle. 
B. It is held primarily for the purpose of 

trading. 
C. It is due to be settled within twelve 

months after the reporting period, or 
D. There is no unconditional right to 

defer the settlement of the liability for 
at least twelve months after the 
reporting period. 

 
The Company classifies all other liabilities 
as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
classified as non-current assets and 
liabilities. 
 
The operating cycle is the time between 
the acquisition of assets for processing 
and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle. 
 

2.3 Foreign currencies transactions and 
translation 

 
Transactions in foreign currencies are 
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing 
on the date of transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency closing rates of 
exchange at the reporting date. 
 
Exchange differences arising on settlement 
or translation of monetary items are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
except to the extent of exchange 
differences which are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs on foreign 
currency borrowings that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets, are 
capitalized as cost of assets. Additionally, 
exchange gains or losses on foreign 
currency borrowings taken prior to April 1, 
2017 which are related to the acquisition 

or construction of qualifying assets are 
adjusted in the carrying cost of such 
assets. 
  
Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are recorded using the exchange 
rates at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was measured. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary 
items measured at fair value is treated in 
line with the recognition of the gain or 
loss on the change in fair value of the item 
(i.e., translation differences on items 
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised 
in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are 
also recognised in OCI or Statement of 
Profit and Loss, respectively). 
 

2.4 Fair value measurement 
 
The Company measures financial 
instruments at fair value on initial 
recognition. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 
 
A. In the principal market for the asset or 

liability, or 
B. In the absence of a principal market, in 

the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability. 
 

The principal or the most advantageous 
market must be accessible by the 
Company. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is 
measured using the assumptions that  



 
market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic 
best interest. A fair value measurement of 
a non-financial asset takes into account a 
market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use 
the asset in its highest and best use. The 
Company uses valuation techniques that 
are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value 
is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole: 
 
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market 
prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which 
the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable. 
 
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which 
the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 
 
For assets and liabilities that are 
recognised in the financial statements on 
a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. 
 
 

 
External valuers are involved for valuation 
of significant assets, such as properties 
and unquoted financial assets. 
Involvement of external valuers is decided 
upon annually by the management. 
Selection criteria include market 
knowledge, reputation, independence and 
whether professional standards are 
maintained. The management decides, 
after discussions with the Company’s 
external valuers, which valuation 
techniques and inputs to use for each 
case. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, 
the Company has determined classes of 
assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or liability and the level of the fair 
value hierarchy as explained above. 
 

2.5 Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it 
is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured. The following 
specific recognition criteria must also be 
met before revenue is recognized: 
 
Sale of goods 
 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized 
when all the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods have been 
passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of 
the goods. Revenue from sale of goods is 
measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, 
taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment and excluding taxes or 
duties collected on behalf of the 
government. 
 
Income from services 
 
Revenue in respect of contracts for 
services is recognized on completion of 
services. 



Interest 

Interest income is recognized on a time 
proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the applicable 
interest rate. Interest income is included 
under the head “other income” in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Dividends 

Dividend income is recognized when the 
company’s right to receive dividend is 
established by the reporting date. 

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 

Since there is no change in the functional 
currency, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value for all of 
its property, plant and equipment as 
recognised in its Indian GAAP financial 
statements as deemed cost at the 
transition date, viz., April 1, 2016. 

Property, plant and equipment are stated 
at cost of acquisition or construction net 
of accumulated depreciation and 
impairment loss (if any). Internally 
manufactured property, plant and 
equipment are capitalised at cost, 
including non-cenvatable excise duty, 
wherever applicable. All significant costs 
relating to the acquisition and installation 
of property, plant and equipment are 
capitalised. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the property, plant and 
equipment and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects if the 
recognition criteria are met. 

When significant parts of plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at 
intervals, the Company depreciates them 
separately based on their specific useful 
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is 
performed, its cost is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the 

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss 
as incurred. The present value of the 
expected cost for the decommissioning of 
an asset after its use is included in the cost 
of the respective asset if the recognition 
criteria for a provision are met. 

Subsequent costs are included in the 
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. 

The identified components are 
depreciated over their useful lives, the 
remaining asset is depreciated over the 
life of the principal asset. Depreciation on 
the identified components has been 
provided for on straight line method at 
the rates prescribed and in the manner 
specified in Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions is 
provided on Pro-rata basis for the period 
for which the Assets are put to use. Assets 
costing ` 5000/- or less are fully 
depreciated in the year of purchase. 

Freehold land is carried at cost. 

The residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

2.7 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are 
measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Internally generated 
intangible assets, excluding capitalized 



development costs, are not capitalized and 
expenditure is reflected in the statement 
of profit and loss in the year in which the 
expenditure is incurred. 
 
The amortization period and the 
amortization method are reviewed at least 
at each financial year end. If the expected 
useful life of the asset is significantly 
different from previous estimates, the 
amortization period is changed 
accordingly. 
 
The summary of amortization policy 
applied to the Company’s intangible 
assets is as below: 
 

Type of Asset Life (Years) 

Computer Software 5 

 
2.8 Borrowing costs 

 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction of qualifying 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its 
intended use are capitalized as part of the 
cost of the respective asset. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to Profit and 
Loss accounts. 
 

2.9 Leases 
 
Company in its capacity as lessee 
 
Finance leases, which effectively transfer 
to the company substantially all the risks 
and benefits incidental to ownership of 
the leased item, are capitalized at the 
inception of the lease term at the lower of 
the fair value of the leased property and 
present value of minimum lease payments. 
Lease payments are apportioned between 
the finance charges and reduction of the 
lease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognized as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. Lease 

management fees, legal charges and other 
initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.  
 

2.10 Inventories 
 
Raw materials, components, stores and 
spares are valued at lower of cost and net 
realizable value. However, materials and 
other items held for use in the production 
of inventories are not written down below 
cost if the finished products in which they 
will be incorporated are expected to be 
sold at or above cost. Cost of raw 
materials, components and stores and 
spares is determined on First-in First-Out 
basis. 
 
Finished goods are valued at lower of cost 
and net realizable value. Cost includes 
direct materials and labour and a 
proportion of manufacturing overheads 
based on normal operating capacity. Cost 
of finished goods includes excise duty and 
is determined on First-in First-Out basis. 
 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting 
date as to whether there is any indication 
that any property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets or group of assets, 
called cash generating units (CGU) may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists the 
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is 
estimated to determine the extent of 
impairment, if any. When it is not possible 
to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Company estimates 
the recoverable amount of the CGU to 
which the asset belongs. 
 
 An impairment loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, 
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value 
less cost of disposal and value in use. 
Value in use is based on the estimated 
future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate 



that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and risk specific 
to the assets. 
 
The impairment loss recognised in prior 
accounting period is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimate of 
recoverable amount. 
 

2.12 Retirement and other employee benefits 
 
Retirement benefit in the form of 
provident fund is a defined contribution 
scheme. The contributions to the 
provident fund are charged to the 
statement of profit and loss for the year 
when the contributions are due. The 
company has no obligation, other than the 
contribution payable to the provident 
fund. 
 
The company operates one defined 
benefit plan for its employees, viz., 
gratuity. The costs of providing benefits 
under these plans are determined on the 
basis of actuarial valuation at each year-
end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for 
plan using the projected unit credit 
method. Actuarial gains and losses for 
defined benefit plan are recognized in full 
in the period in which they occur in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
 

2.13 Income taxes 
 
Tax expense comprises of current and 
deferred tax.  Current income tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities in accordance 
with the Income-Tax Act, 1961.Deferred 
income taxes reflects the impact of current 
year timing differences between taxable 
income and accounting income for the 
year and reversal of timing differences of 
earlier years. 
 
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax 
rates and the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 

liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable 
right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities relate to the taxes on income 
levied by same governing taxation laws. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to 
the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 
The company writes-down the carrying 
amount of a deferred tax asset to the 
extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which 
deferred tax asset can be realized. Any 
such write-down is reversed to the extent 
that it becomes reasonably certain that 
sufficient future taxable income will be 
available. 
 
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a 
year is charged to the statement of profit 
and loss as current tax. The company 
recognizes MAT credit available as an 
asset only to the extent that there is 
convincing evidence that the company will 
pay normal income tax during the 
specified period, i.e., the period for which 
MAT credit is allowed to be carried 
forward. In the year in which the company 
recognizes MAT credit as an asset in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Accounting for Credit Available in respect 
of Minimum Alternative Tax under the 
Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is 
created by way of credit to the statement 
of profit and loss and shown as “MAT 
Credit Entitlement”. 
 

2.14 Earnings Per Share 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by 
dividing the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the 



weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. 
 

2.15 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent   
Assets 

 
Provisions involving substantial degree of 
estimation in measurement are recognized 
when there is a present obligation as a 
result of past events and it is probable that 
there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent Liabilities are not recognized 
but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent 
Assets are neither recognized nor 
disclosed in the financial statements. 
 

2.16 Financial instruments 
 
Financial Assets 
 
A. Initial recognition and measurement 

 
All financial assets and liabilities are 
initially recognized at fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities, 
which are not at fair value through profit 
or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on 
initial recognition. Purchase and sale of 
financial assets are recognised using trade 
date accounting. 

 
B. Subsequent measurement 

 
a. Financial assets carried at amortised 

cost (AC) 
 
A financial asset is measured at 
amortised cost if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is to 
hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

 

b. Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI) 
 
A financial asset is measured at 
FVTOCI if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by 
both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 
 

c. Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL) 
 
A financial asset which is not classified 
in any of the above categories are 
measured at FVTPL. 

 
C. Investment in subsidiaries  

The Company has accounted for its 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint venture at cost. 

 
D. Other Equity Investments 

 
All other equity investments are measured 
at fair value, with value changes 
recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss, except for those equity investments 
for which the Company has elected to 
present the value changes in ‘Other 
Comprehensive Income’. 

 
E. Impairment of financial assets 

 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the 
Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) 
model, for evaluating impairment of 
financial assets other than those measured 
at fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL). 
 
Expected credit losses are measured 
through a loss allowance at an amount 
equal to: 



a. The 12-months expected credit losses 
(expected credit losses that result from 
those default events on the financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date); or 
 

b. Full lifetime expected credit losses 
(expected credit losses that result from 
all possible default events over the life 
of the financial instrument). 

 
For trade receivables Company applies 
‘simplified approach’ which requires 
expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of the receivables. 
The Company uses historical default rates 
to determine impairment loss on the 
portfolio of trade receivables. At every 
reporting date these historical default 
rates are reviewed and changes in the 
forward looking estimates are analysed. 
 
For other assets, the Company uses 12 
month ECL to provide for impairment loss 
where there is no significant increase in 
credit risk. If there is significant increase in 
credit risk full lifetime ECL is used. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
A. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair 
value and in case of loans, net of directly 
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature 
are directly recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as finance cost. 
 
B. Subsequent measurement 
 
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. 
For trade and other payables maturing 
within one year from the balance sheet 
date, the carrying amounts approximate 
fair value due to the short maturity of 
these instruments. 
 

2.17 Critical accounting judgments and key  
sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company’s 
financial statements requires management 
to make judgement, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported 
amount of revenue, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the accompanying 
disclosures. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected in future 
periods. 
 
A. Decommissioning Liabilities 

 
The liability for decommissioning costs are 
recognized when the Company has 
obligation to perform site restoration 
activity. The recognition and measurement 
of decommissioning provisions involves 
the use of estimates and assumptions. 
These include; the timing of abandonment 
of well and related facilities which would 
depend upon the ultimate life of the field, 
expected utilization of assets by other 
fields, the scope of abandonment activity 
and pre-tax rate applied for discounting. 
 
B. Recoverability of trade receivable 

 
Judgements are required in assessing the 
recoverability of overdue trade receivables 
and determining whether a provision 
against those receivables is required. 
Factors considered include the credit 
rating of the counterparty, the amount 
and timing of anticipated future payments 
and any possible actions that can be taken 
to mitigate the risk of non-payment. 
 
C. Provisions 
 
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in 
the period when it becomes probable that 
there will be a future outflow of funds 
resulting from past operations or events 
and the amount of cash outflow can be 
reliably estimated. The timing of 
recognition and quantification of the 
liability requires the application of 



judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances, which can be subject to 
change. The carrying amounts of 
provisions and liabilities are reviewed 
regularly and revised to take account of 
changing facts and circumstances. 

D. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting 
date whether there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its 
value in use. It is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or 
a groups of assets. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down 
to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if no 
such transactions can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. 

E. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial 
assets are based on assumptions about 
risk of default and expected cash loss 
rates. The Company uses judgement in 
making these assumptions and selecting 
the inputs to the impairment calculation, 
based on Company’s past history, existing 
market conditions as well as forward 
looking estimates at the end of each 
reporting period. 

2.18 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS 

The Company has adopted Ind AS with 
effect from April 2017 with 
comparatives being restated. 
Accordingly the impact of transition has 
been provided in the Opening Reserves 
as at 1st April 2016. The figures for the 
previous period have been restated, 
regrouped and reclassified wherever 
required to comply with the 
requirement of Ind AS and Schedule 
III. 

Exceptions applied 

The Company has applied all the 
mandatory exceptions in accordance 
with Ind AS 101. Following are the 
exceptions with significant impact: 

A. Estimates

The estimates at April 1, 2016 and at 
March 31, 2017 are consistent with 
those made for the same dates in 
accordance with Indian GAAP (after 
adjustments to reflect any differences 
in accounting policies) apart from 
the following items where application of 
Indian GAAP did not require estimation: 

FVTOCI – unquoted and quoted equity 
shares 

FVTPL – debt securities 

Impairment of financial assets based on 
expected credit loss model. 

The estimates used by the Company to 
present these amounts in accordance with 
Ind AS reflect conditions at April 1, 
2016, the date of transition to Ind 
AS and as of March 31, 2017. 

B. Classification and measurement of
financial assets

The Company has classified financial 
assets on the basis of the facts and 



circumstances that exist at the date of 
transition to Ind AS. 

C. Derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities

The Company has elected to apply the 
derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 
prospectively for transactions occurring on 
or after April 1, 2015. However, for certain 
financial assets and financial liabilities 
derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 
were applied retrospectively where 
information needed was obtained at the 
time of initially accounting for 
derecognition. 

Exemptions applied 

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters 
certain exemptions from the retrospective 
application of certain requirements under 
Ind AS. The Company has applied the 
following exemptions: 

A. Exemptions from retrospective
application

The Company has applied the exemption 
as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-
application of Ind AS 103, “Business 
Combinations” to business combinations 
consummated prior to April 1, 2016 (the 
“Transition Date”), pursuant to which 
goodwill/capital reserve arising from a 
business combination has been stated at 
the carrying amount prior to the date of 
transition under Indian GAAP. The 
Company has also applied the exemption 
for past business combinations to 
acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries 
/ associates / joint ventures consummated 
prior to the Transition Date. 

B. Fair value as deemed cost
exemption

The Company has elected to measure 
items of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets at its carrying value 

of property, plant and equipments as 
recognised in financial statements as per 
Indian GAAP and regard those values as 
deemed costs on the date of transition 
and has carried forward gross block and 
accumulated depreciation only for 
discloser purposes. 

C. Cumulative translation differences

The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 
21 - The Effects of changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rate prospectively. Accordingly 
all cumulative gains and losses recognised 
are reset to zero by transferring it to 
retained earnings. 

D. Long Term Foreign Currency
Monetary Items

The Company continues the policy of 
capitalising exchange differences arising 
on translation of long term foreign 
currency monetary items. 

E. Investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates

The Company has elected to measure 
investment in subsidiaries, joint venture 
and associate at cost. 

F. Decommissioning liabilities

The Company has elected to apply the 
transitional provision with respect to 
recognition of Decommissioning, 
Restoration and Similar Liabilities. 
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Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 4 -  Investments - Non Current (` In Lakhs)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Investment in equity shares (quoted)

58.34             58.34             

Less : Provision for Permanent Dimunition in Value of Investment (58.34)            (58.34)            
Closing Balance [A] -               -               

Investment in equity shares (unquoted)
0.25               0.25               
5.00               5.00               

875.00           875.00           

Total 880.25          880.25          

Note 5 - Loans -Non Current (` in Lakhs)

(Unsecured, Considered Good) March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Security Deposits 57.64             61.94             
Balances with statutory / government authorities
Duties under Dispute * 27.01             27.01             

Total 84.65            88.95            

*Duties under Dispute showing amount which is related to Excise.

Note 6- Inventories (Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Raw materials 869.21           423.69           
Finished goods 88.99             145.80           
Semi-Finished goods 1,059.14        730.57           
Stores & others and Packing Material 422.64           28.61             
Stock in Trade 24.17             41.44             

Total 2,464.17       1,370.11       

Note 7 - Trade receivables (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Trade Receivables 3,651.90        2,495.02        

Total 3,651.90       2,495.02       

20,000 (Previous Year 20,000) Equity Share of Rs.25 Each in SVC Co- Op Bank Ltd.
82,50,000 (Previous Year 45,00,000)Equity Share of Rs. 10 Each in Oriental Foundry Pvt 
Ltd. [Subsidiary]

2,00,500( Previous Year 2,00,500) Equity Share of Rs.. 10 Each Fully Paid up in 
Nageshwar Investment Ltd. (Note:- 38)

2,500 (Previous Year 2,500) Equity Share of Rs. 10 Each in Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd



Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 8 - Cash and Cash Equivalents (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Balance with banks:
On current accounts 18.04             26.96             
Cash on hand 11.61             24.97             

29.65             51.93             
Other fixed deposit with banks
Fixed Deposit with Banks 2,795.21        2,640.23        

Total 2,824.86       2,692.16       

Notes 9 -  Loans- Current
(Unsecured, Considered Good) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Advance recoverable in cash or kind* 345.93           169.21           
Balances with statutory / government authorities 1,177.97        165.52           

Total 1,523.91       334.73          

* Includes advance to creditors & others loans & advances

Note 10 - Other current assets (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Interest accrued on Deposit with MSEB 1.65               2.34               
Interest accrued on FDR with banks 71.89             125.27           

Total 73.54            127.60          

Note 11  - Share Capital (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Authorized
6,000,000 (Previous year 6,000,000 ) equity share of Rs. 10 each 600.00           600.00           

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up
53,90,300 (Previous year 53,90,300) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 539.03           539.03           

Total 539.03           539.03           

a.   Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

(` in Lakhs) (` in Lakhs)

Number of Shares ` Number of Shares `

At the beginning of the period 53.90            0.01              53.90             539.03           
Add: Issue of Shares during the year -               -               -                -                

53.90            0.01              53.90             539.03           
Less:-  Calls in Arrears -               -                
Outstanding at the end of the year 53.90          0.01            53.90            539.03          

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017



Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

b.   Terms/rights attached to equity shares

c.   Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company*

Number of 
Shares

% holding
Number of 

Shares
% holding

Name of the shareholder

Vision Infpro (India) Private Ltd. 5.50              10.20% 5.50               10.20%
Vali N Mithiborwala 4.19              7.77% 4.19               7.77%
Saleh N Mithiborwala 3.62              6.71% 3.62               6.71%

Note 12 - Other Equity (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Reserve & Surplus ` `

a) Capital Reserve*
Balance as per the last financial statement 30.25             30.25             
Add: Transfer during the year -                -                
Closing balance 30.25            30.25            
* Capital Reserve stood for State Capital Subsidy

b) General Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statement 2,685.86        359.54           
Add: Transfer during the year 967.75           2,326.33        
Closing balance 3,653.61       2,685.86       

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statement -                1,684.37        
Add: Profit for the year 1,097.50        723.24           
Add: Effect of transition to Ind AS -                48.47             
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 1,097.50       2,456.08       
Less : Appropriations
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 107.81           107.81           
[Dividend per Share Rs.2/-] -                -                
Tax on Dividend 21.95             21.95             
Transfer to General Reserve 967.75           2,326.33        
Total -                -                
Total 3,683.86       2,716.11       

The company has only one class of equity shares having a per value of Rs. 10 per share. Each Equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

* As per records of the Company, Including its Register of Shareholders/ Members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.



Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 13 -  Borrowing (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` ` ` `

Secured
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks
Vehicle Loan* 8.16              13.99            12.62             27.91             
Term loan 2.54              29.84            23.93             26.66             

10.70  43.83  36.55  54.57  
The above amount includes
Amount disclosed under the head - (36.55)            (54.57)            
Net amount 10.70  43.83  - - 

Note 14 -  Provision (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 49.95             46.35             

Total 49.95  46.35  

Note 15 - Deferred tax liabilities (Net) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Deferred tax liabilities
87.78             72.93             

Deferred tax assets
- - 

87.78  72.93  

Note 16  -  Borrowings - Current (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Secured
Working capital loan
From Banks
Rupee Loan* 3,835.38        3,187.11        

Total 3,835.38  3,187.11  

* Working Capital Loan from The Saraswat Co. Op. Bank Ltd and The Shamrao Vithal Co. Op Bank Ltd. are Secured by hypothecation of
present and future Inventories, Book debts and other current assets of the Company. The Working Capital loans are further guaranteed
by Directors of the Company, including Managing Director of the Company. Working Capital loans are further secured by first charge
on the Fixed Assets of the Company.

Less: Disallowances under Income tax 

Non-current portion

*Secured by hypothecation of vehicles acquired under said loans.

Related to fixed assets

Current portion



Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 17 - Trade Payables (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises -                     -                     
Other Payable 3,085.75        1,276.46        

Total 3,085.75       1,276.46       

Note 18 - Other Financial Liabilities - Current (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Current maturities of Borrowings - Non Current 36.55             54.57             
Others Payable* 345.02           221.98           

Total 381.57          276.55          

Note 19 - Provision (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Other 
Income Tax 577.76           422.37           
Provision for Gratuity 9.76               9.06               
Provision for Excise duty* -                8.25               
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 107.81           107.81           
Tax on Dividend 43.89             21.95             

Total 739.22          569.44          

Note 20 - Revenue from operations (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Value of Sales 11,494.40      8,738.95        
Add: Excise duty 141.83           569.57           
Add: Other Tax 133.30           503.20           

Revenue from operation 11,769.53    9,811.72       

* The Company had recognised liability based on substantial degree of estimation for excise duty payable on clearance of goods lying
in stock as on March 31, 2017 of ` 8.25 Lakhs as per the estimated pattern of dispatches. During the year, ` 8.25 lakhs was utilised for
clearance of goods. Provision recognised under this class for the year is ` Nil which is outstanding as on March 31, 2018. Actual
outflow is expected in the next financial year.

*Other liabilities includes statutory dues, creditor for capital expenditure, advances from customer and other expenses 
payable.



Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Detail of products sold (Net) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Seat & Berth 7,726.79        5,160.25        
Recorn 132.16           365.98           
Compreg Board & Articles thereof 1,789.18        1,999.40        
Furniture & Parts 74.46             16.48             
Retention Tank 553.20           148.27           
Coated Upholstery Fabric 101.54           265.33           
Luggage Rack -                123.11           
Plywood 99.04             -                
Phenolic Resin & Hardner 132.04           -                
Others* 60.07             58.77             

10,668.47    8,137.58       

Traded goods sold (Net) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Polyster Staples Fibers 811.69           596.87           

811.69          596.87          

Details of Sale of Services(Net) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Installation Charges /Labour Charges 14.24             4.50               

14.24            4.50              

Note 21 - Other income (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Interest on Bank FDR 172.89           188.21           
Interest on Other (MSEB Deposits) 1.84               2.08               
Dividend on non current investment 0.83               0.79               
Interest on Calls in Arrears -                0.58               
Interest on Railway Security Deposit 24.00             -                

 Foreign Currency Fluctuation 5.22               -                
Profit on Sale of Vehicle 2.21               -                
Excess Provision Written Back 8.25               -                

Total 215.24          191.67          

Note 22 - Cost of material and consumed (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Opening Stock 452.30           1,257.92        
Add: Purchases (Including stores ) 7,920.32        4,822.55        

8,372.62        6,080.47        
Less: Closing Stock (including stores) 1,291.86        452.30           

Total 7,080.76       5,628.17       
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Traded goods purchase (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Polyster Staples Fibers 751.15           615.31           

751.15          615.31          

Detail of material consumed (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Raw Material 5,885.70        4,816.30        
Stores & others and Packing Material 1,195.06        811.87           

7,080.76       5,628.17       

Detail of inventory (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Opening
Raw material 423.69           1,105.99        
Stores & others and Packing Material 28.61             151.93           

452.30          1,257.92       
Closing
Raw material 869.21           423.69           
Stores & others and Packing Material 422.64           28.61             

1,291.86       452.30          

Note  23 - Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Inventories (at close)
Finished goods 88.99             145.80           
Work in Progress 1,059.14        730.57           
Stock in Trade 24.17             41.44             

1,172.31        917.81           
Inventories (at commencement)
Finished goods 145.80           135.26           
Work in Progress 730.57           517.86           
Stock in Trade 41.44             -                

917.81           653.12           

Total (254.50)        (264.69)        

Note 24 - Employee benefit expense (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 847.68           692.40           
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 25.28             27.33             
Staff Welfare Expenses 94.55             78.47             

Total 967.51          798.19          
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Note 25 - Finance Costs (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Interest on Term Loan 7.18 13.38             
Interest on Working Capital Loans 133.29           144.61           
Others 27.41             18.43             

Total 167.87  176.42  

Note 26 - Depreciation and Amortization Expense (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Depreciation of tangible assets 93.70             95.55             
Amortization of intangible assets 1.08 2.30 

Total 94.78  97.85  

Note 27 - Other expenses (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Manufacturing expenses
Power and fuel 235.40           201.96           
Labour Charges 98.43             49.48             
Testing Charges 4.98 3.78 
Water Charges 21.00             16.43             
Excise duty* - 0.60 
Factory Expenses 31.28             27.74 
Repairs and maintenance - - 
Plant and machinery 10.50             4.68 

401.60  304.67  

Sales & Administration Expenses
Advertisement 3.03 2.58 
Books and Periodicals 0.27 0.21 
Business Promotion 9.65 5.22 
Communication costs 27.10             30.11             
Commision Expenses 1.66 - 
Computer Expenses 8.23 5.96 
Discount & Rebate (2.39) 1.04 
Electricity Expenses (Office) 6.07 5.69 
Exchange gain loss (net) - 2.13 
Fees And Subscription 2.86 2.55 
Freight Out Ward & Loading & Unloading charges 200.48           31.70             
Inspection Charges 0.11 1.52 
Insurance 18.33             12.07             
Legal and professional fees 32.94             32.59             
Office and Administrative 83.39             51.17             
Payment to auditor 6.00 6.00 
Postage & Telegram 5.26 5.10 
Printing and stationery 21.35             14.90             
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Rent, Rates and taxes 9.91 8.61 
VAT/Other Taxes 133.30           503.20           
Repair and Mainteance of Staff Quarter 10.78             2.52 
Security Charges 10.65             11.36             
Tender Fees 3.78 3.95 
Travelling and conveyance 291.57           91.84             
Vehicle Expenses 59.31             43.36             

943.66  875.38  
Total 1,345.25  1,180.05  

Payment to Auditor
As auditor:
Audit fee 6.00 6.00 

6.00  6.00  

Note 28 - Earnings per shares (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Profit after tax (`) 1,097.50        723.24           
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 53.90             53.90             
Face value per share (`) 10.00             10.00             
Basic earnings per share (`) 20. 6 13.42  

* Excise Duty shown under expenditure represents the aggregate of excise duty borne by the company and difference
between excise duty on opening and closing stock of finished goods.



Note 29 - Related Party Disclosure [as certified by Management]

Name of the Related Party

M/s. Oriental Foundry Pvt Ltd.

Ms. Priya V Bhagat [ Company Secretary) Key Management Personnel

M/s. V.K.Mithiborwala & Co.Pvt.Ltd
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd.
M/s. Gen Wood Products Pvt Ltd.
M/s. Exim Trade Links (I) Pvt Ltd.
M/s. Vision Housing & Infrastructure Co Pvt Ltd.
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd.
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited
M/s. Trishala Veener Pvt Ltd.

b) Transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Salary paid
Ms.Priya V Bhagat - - 3.70 1.20 - - 
Mr.Satish V Bhanushali - - - 2.22 - - 

Unsecured Loans taken - 
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - 7.00 
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited - - - - - 340.00 

Unsecured Loans repayment
M/s. Vision Housing & Infrastructure Co Pvt Ltd. -    - - - - 31.11 
M/s. Exim Trade Links (I) Pvt Ltd. - - - - - 412.90 
M/s. V.K.Mithiborwala & Co.Pvt.Ltd - - - - - 2,228.62           
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - 926.88 
M/s. Gen Wood Products Pvt Ltd. - - - - - 21.10 
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited - - - - - 1,444.41           

Loans and advances (Given)
M/s. Oriental Foundry Pvt Ltd. 2,710.01           1,804.00           - - - - 

Loans and advances (Repayment Recd)
M/s. Oriental Foundry Pvt Ltd. 2,710.01           2,690.88           - - - - 

Sales of Goods
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd. - - - - 967.20 718.27 
M/s. Oriental Foundry Pvt Ltd. 185.73 63.81 - - - - 
M/s. Gen Wood Products Pvt Ltd. - - - - 1.51 3.57 

Purchase of Goods
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd. - - - - 841.87 1,255.96           
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd. - - - - 15.80 17.88 
M/s. Trishala Veener Pvt Ltd. - - - - 1,275.93           - 

Expenses Reimbursement
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited - - - - 1.00 - 
M/s. V.K.Mithiborwala & Co.Pvt.Ltd - - - - 3.61 3.06 

C) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2018 (` in Lakhs)

Creditor/Debtor outstanding at the year 
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd. - - - - 370.62 48.35 
M/s. Oriental Foundry Pvt Ltd. - 16.46 - - - - 
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - 5.14 
M/s. Trishala Veener Pvt Ltd. - - - - 1,573.18           - 

Subsidiary Company  Key Management Personnel Enterprises significantly influenced  
by key management personnel or 
their relatives

Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Relationship

Subsidiary Company

Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel 
exercises Significant Influence or their relatives

(a) List of related parties where control exists and related with whom transactions have taken place and
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Profit and Loss Account (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost
Current service cost 4.31 17.40             
Interest cost on benefit obligation Nil Nil
Expected return on plan assets NA NA
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognized in the year
Net benefit expense 4.31   17.40 

Balance sheet
(` in Lakhs)

Benefit asset/ liability As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Present value of defined benefit obligation 59.72             55.40             
Fair value of plan assets Nil Nil
Plan asset / (liability) 59.72             55.40             

Note 30 - Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has not received any intimation from "suppliers" regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act,2006 and hence disclosure, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with 
interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been given.

Note 31- Segment information

i) Primary (Business) Segment
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 “Segment Reporting” issued by the ICAI, the Company’s business consist 
of one reportable segment i.e. Seat & Bearth, Recorn Densified Thermal Bonded Blocks, Recorn Wadding, Comperg,
le Mattress hence no separate disclosures pertaining to attributable Revenues, Profits, Assets, Liabilities, Capital Employed 
are given.

ii) Secondary (Geographical) Segment
Secondary segment reporting is performed on the basis of geographical location of the Customers. The operation of the 
Company comprises domestic sales and export sales. The export sale consideration is not materialized hence no separate 
disclosure pertaining to attributable Revenues, Profits, Assets, Liabilities, Capital Employed are given.

Note - 32 Gratuity

The company operates one-defined plans, viz., gratuity  Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed atleast 
five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. 

The Company has charged the gratuity provision of ` 4.31 Lakhs in the profit and loss accounts in the year ended  March , 
2018 (previous year, ` 17.40 lacs). The gross obligation toward the gratuity at the end of the year on  discountinuance is ` 

55.40. Lacs (previous year, ` 42.12 Lacs). The Company has not funded the gratuity obligation against any plan assets.
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Opening defined benefit obligation 55.40             42.12             
Current service cost 4.31 13.28             
Interest cost Nil Nil
Benefits paid Nil Nil
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation 4.31 13.28             
Closing defined benefit obligation 59.72             55.40             

(` in Lakhs)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Opening fair value of plan assets Nil Nil
Expected return N.A N.A
Contributions by employer N.A N.A
Benefits paid N.A N.A
Actuarial gains / (losses) Nil Nil
Closing fair value of plan assets

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

Note 33 - Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Stock in Trade - - 
Raw Material & Consumables 282.24           24.42             

Total 282.24  24.42  

Note 34 - Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Travelling Expenses 11.77             26.93             

Total 11.77  26.93  

5.00% P.A.

LIC (2006-08)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, taking into consideration the general trend in
 

58 Years

Future Salary Rise

Mortality Table

2.00 % P.A.

Gratuity
Retirement Age
Withdrawal Rates

Rate of Discounting 0.0785
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Note 35 - Imported and indigenous raw material, components and spare parts consumed
(` in Lakhs)

% of total ` % of total `

Imported 3.99% 282.24          0.43% 24.42             
Indigenous 96.01% 6,798.52       99.57% 5,603.75        

Total 100.00% 7,080.76  100.00% 5,628.17  

Note 37 - Contigent Liabilities (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Central Excise
Corporate Guarantee
Income Tax

Note 38 - Derivative instrument (` in Lakhs)

Foreign currency exposures are not hedged by derivative instrument.

$ ` $ `

Payments for Import Purchases 4.41              283.12          0.33 20.19             
Advance For Import Purchases - - 0.46 29.69             

Note 39 -  Previous Year Figures

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

March 31, 2018

Note 36- Out of the total debtors of ` 3651.89 Lakhs As at March 31, 2018, ` 2419.03 Lakhs has been received subsequent to the year
end. For the balance of ` 1232.85 Lakhs the management is in discussion with these debtors to expedite the recoverability of the
above aforesaid outstanding amounts and belevies that the entire amount is fully recoverable. In view of the forgoing, no provision is
considered necessary in these financial statements in this regard.

Previous Year Figures has been recast/restated.

March 31, 2017

Letter of Credit outstanding with Saraswat Co-Operative Bank Ltd. at the end of the year for ` 122.73 Lakhs (Previous year ` 

149.58 Lakhs ) and Bank Gurantee of  ` 198.93 Lakhs  (Previous Year ` 77.35).



Note 40 - FIRST TIME IND AS ADOPTION RECONCILIATION

(` in Lakhs)

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition 
to Ind AS

As per Ind AS 
balance 
sheet

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition 
to Ind AS

As per Ind 
AS balance 

sheet

ASSETS
Non - Current assets
Property ,Plant  and equipment 737.91 - 737.91 719.60 - 719.60
Intangible assets 1.08 - 1.08 3.38 - 3.38 
Financial assets
Investments 880.25 - 880.25 830.25 - 830.25
Loans 88.95 - 88.95 88.05 - 88.05 

Total Non-Current Assets 1,708.19  - 1,708.19 1,641.28  - 1,641.28 

Current Assets
Inventories 1,370.11     - 1,370.11 1,911.04     - 1,911.04 
Financial assets -             -             
Trade receivables 2,495.02     - 2,495.02 2,137.48     - 2,137.48 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,692.16     - 2,692.16 2,701.04     - 2,701.04 
Loans 334.73 - 334.73 1,318.13     - 1,318.13 

Other current assets 127.60 - 127.60 30.28 - 30.28 
Total Current Assets 7,019.62  - 7,019.62 8,097.98  - 8,097.98 
Total Assets 8,727.81  - 8,727.81 9,739.25  - 9,739.25 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 539.03 - 539.03 538.84 - 538.84
Other Equity 2,716.11     - 2,716.11 2,074.15     - 2,074.15 
Total Equity 3,255.14  - 3,255.14 2,612.99  - 2,612.99 

Non - Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 43.83 - 43.83 2,750.60     - 2,750.60 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 72.93 - 72.93 64.49 - 64.49 
Provisions 46.35 - 46.35 34.43 - 34.43 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 163.11  - 163.11 2,849.53  - 2,849.53 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3,187.11     - 3,187.11 1,614.60     - 1,614.60 
Trade Payables 1,276.46     - 1,276.46 1,595.21     - 1,595.21 
Other 276.55 - 276.55 578.09 - 578.09

 Provisions 569.44 - 569.44 488.84 - 488.84
Total Current Liabilities 5,309.56  - 5,309.56 4,276.73  - 4,276.73 
Total Liabilities 5,472.67  - 5,472.67 7,126.26  - 7,126.26 
Total Equity & Liabilties 8,727.81  - 8,727.81 9,739.25  - 9,739.25 

As at March 31, 2017 As at April 01, 2016

1. Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2017 and April 01, 2016

Notes to the standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018



2. Reconciliation of Profit and Other Equity between Ind AS and Previous GAAP
(` in Lakhs)

Nature of Adjustments Notes Net Profit

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2017

As at March 
31, 2017

As at April 01, 
2016

771.71          2,716.11       2,074.15       
- - - 

Fair Valuation for Financial Assets - - - 
Deferred Tax - - - 
Total -  -  -  
Net Profit before OCI/Other Equity as per Ind AS 771.71  2,716.11  2,074.15  

(` in Lakhs)

Previous GAAP
Effect of 

Transition to 
Ind AS

As per Ind AS

Income
Revenue from operations 8,738.95       569.57          9,308.52       
Other Income 191.67          - 191.67 
Total Revenue 8,930.62  569.57  9,500.19  

Expenses
 Cost of Material Consumed 5,628.17       - 5,628.17 
 Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 615.31          - 615.31 
 Changes in Inventories of FG (264.69)         - (264.69) 
 Excise duty - 569.57 569.57 
 Employee Benefits Expense 798.19          - 798.19 
 Finance Costs 176.42          - 176.42 
 Depreciation / Amortisation 97.85            - 97.85 
 Other Expenses 676.84          - 676.84 
Total Expenses 7,728.10  569.57  8,297.67  
Profit Before Tax 1,202.52  - 1,202.52 
Tax expenses
Current tax (422.37)         
Deferred tax (8.43) 

 ( 22.37)
 (8.43) 

Total tax expenses (430.81)  - (430.81) 
Profit for the year 771.71  - 771.71 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Other Equity

Year ended March 31, 2017
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3. Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Fair Valuation as deemed cost for Property, Plant & Equipment 
Net Profit/Other Equity's as per Previous Indian GAAP



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To, 
The Members of Oriental Veneer Products Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying 
consolidated Ind AS  financial statements 
of Oriental Veneer Products Limited 
(‘the Company’) and its subsidiary 
companies (the Company and its 
subsidiary companies together referred as 
‘the Group’), which comprise the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity the Consolidated Cash 
Flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and  including  a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (‘the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements’). 

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the preparation of these 
consolidated Ind AS  financial statements 
in terms of the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated state 
of affairs, consolidated profit /loss 
(including other comprehensive income ), 
consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act as 
applicable. The respective Board of 
Directors of the Company and its 
subsidiary companies are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities;  

selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the consolidated  Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of these 
consolidated Ind AS  financial statements 
by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements based on our audit. We have 
taken into account the provisions of the 
Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made there under. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143 (10) 
of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the 
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the 



auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the group’s preparation 
of the Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, that give true and fair view, in 
order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on whether the group has in place an 
adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. An audit 
also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the group’s 
Management and Board of Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated  Ind AS financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted 
in India of the consolidated state of affairs 
of the group as at March 31, 2018, and its 
consolidated  profit (including other 
comprehensive income), its consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements 

and other financial information, in respect 
of 1 subsidiary whose financial statements 
include total assets of  10,002.50 Lakh as 
at March 31, 2018, total revenues of  
1,673.51 Lakh and net cash inflow of  
95.18 Lakh for the year ended on that date 
March 31, 2018. These financial statements 
and other financial information have been 
audited by other auditors, whose financial 
statements, other financial information 
and auditor’s reports have been furnished 
to us by the management. Our opinion on 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so 
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary 
is based solely on the reports of such 
other auditors. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, and our report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements above, is 
not modified in respect of the above 
matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the reports of the other 
auditor and the financial statements and 
other financial information certified by the 
Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the
Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law relating to
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements have been kept so
far as it appears from our examination
of those books and the reports of the
other auditors.



c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, the consolidated Statement of
changes in equity and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated  Ind AS financial
statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements comply with applicable
Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written
representations received from the
Directors of the Company as on March
31, 2018, taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Company and the
reports of the auditors of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, none
of the Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, incorporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from
being appointed as a Director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial
reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our report in “Annexure A”, which is
based on the Auditors’ Reports of the
Company and its subsidiary companies

incorporated in India. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on 
the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India. 

g. In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanation given to us, we report as
under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014:

(i) The group have disclosed any
pending litigations which would
impact its financial position as
referred in Note 38 to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

(ii) The group have made provision, as
required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative
contracts.

(iii) There has not been an occasion in
case of the group during the year
under report to transfer any sums to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in
transferring such sums does not arise.

For Amarnath Sharma & Co.   
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 100300W 

A  Nath Sharma   
Proprietor  
Membership No. 039579 
Date:- May 24, 2018 
Place:-Mumbai  



ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements" of our report of even date.) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of 
Oriental Veneer Products Limited (‘the 
Company’) and its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India as at March 31, 2018 
in conjunction with our audit of the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended and as on 
that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for 
Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the 
Company and its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the respective 
internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company and its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the 
respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act 
and the Guidance Note, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with the ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained and the audit evidence obtained 
of  company & its subsidiary incorporated 
in India, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may 

occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion to the best of our 
information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Company and 
its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India, have, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2018, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company and its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India considering the 
essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. 

Other Matter 

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3) 
(i) of the Act on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting
insofar as it relates to 1 subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India, is based
on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such companies incorporated in
India.

For Amarnath Sharma & Co.   
Chartered Accountants   
Firm Registration No. 100300W 

A  Nath Sharma   
Proprietor  
Membership No. 039579 
Date:- May 24, 2018 
Place:-Mumbai



(` in Lakhs)
As at As at

Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipments 3 3,536.67 3,312.49 
Capital Work in Progress 3 3,536.96 1,367.44 
Goodwill 4 21.46 47.40 
Other Intangible Assets - 1.08 
Financial Assets

Investments 5 5.26 5.25 
Loans 6 152.45 91.47 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 76.28 - 
Total Non-Current Assets 7,329.07  4,825.13  

Current Assets
Inventories 8 4,971.73 3,071.68 
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 9 3,935.23 2,892.65 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 2,920.04 2,740.90 
Loans 11 2,332.58 984.35 

Other Current Assets 12 73.54 127.60 
Total Current Assets 14,233.12  9,817.18  
Total Assets 21,562.19  14,642.31  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 539.03 539.03 
Other Equity 14 3,683.86 2,674.94 
Non-Controlling Interest - - 

4,222.89  3,213.97  

Liabilities
Non- Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
    Borrowings 15 8,419.73 4,781.25 

Provisions 16 53.14 47.87 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 87.78 131.45 
Total Non- Current Liabilities 8,560.65  4,960.57  

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
    Borrowings 18 4,012.19 3,720.71 
    Trade Payables 19 3,295.29 1,632.79 
    Other Financial Liabilities 20 730.61 538.48 

Provisions 21 740.56 575.78 
Total Current Liabilities 8,778.65  6,467.76  
Total Liabilities 17,339.30  11,428.34  
Total Equity & Liabilities 21,562.19  14,642.31  

2

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary

  Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Significant accounting policies and Notes to the 
Consolidated financial statement

Consolidated Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2018



(` in Lakhs)
Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Revenue From Operations 22 13,268.61                 10,379.43                 
Other Income 23 231.27                      193.89                      
Total Income 13,499.89              10,573.32              

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 8,442.93                   6,872.40                   
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24 751.15                      615.31                      
Changes in inventories 25 (941.64)                    (1,111.30)                  
Excise Duty and Service Tax 166.48                      634.01                      
Employee benefits expense 26 1,167.52                   921.04                      
Finance costs 27 271.49                      331.16                      
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 253.32                      254.33                      
Other expenses 29 1,766.21                   887.93                      
Total expenses 11,877.46              9,404.87                

Profit Before Exceptional Items And Tax 1,622.42                1,168.45                
Exceptional Items -                           
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,622.42                1,168.45                
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax (577.76)                    (422.37)                    

(2) Deferred tax 119.95                      26.29                        
Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations 1,164.62                772.37                   
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations
Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations after Tax -                         -                         
Profit/(loss) for the period 1,164.62                772.37                   
Other Comprehensive Income

-                           -                           

-                           -                           

iii. Items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -                           (27.61)                      

-                           (20.86)                      

-                         (48.47)                    
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1,164.62                723.90                   

Net Profit Attributable to:
a. Owners of the Company 1,164.62                772.37                   
b. Non-Controlling Interest -                           -                           

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
a. Owners of the Company -                           (48.47)                      
b. Non-Controlling Interest -                           

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
a. Owners of the Company 1,164.62                723.90                   
b. Non-Controlling Interest -                           -                           

Basic ( in `) 30 21.61                        13.43                        
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants Saleh N. Mithiborwala
Firm registration number: 100300W  Whole Time Director / CFO

DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary

  Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Significant accounting policies and Notes to the Consolidated financial 

Statement of Consolidated profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

Earnings per Equity share of Face Value of ` 10 each

ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and 
Loss

i. Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

iv. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss



A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
( ` in Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of 
the reporting period i.e. 
April 01, 2016

Changes in Equity Share 
capital during the year 2016-
17

Balance at the end of the 
reporting period i.e. March 
31, 2017

Changes in Equity Share 
capital during the year 2017-
18

Balance at the end of 
the reporting period 
i.e. March 31, 2018

                                      539.03                                             -                                        539.03                                             -                                539.03 

B. OTHER EQUITY
( ` in Lakhs)

Capital Reserve General Reserve Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of 
the reporting period i.e. April 
01, 2016                                        30.25                                      359.54 1,601.32                                  1,991.11                         
Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year                                             -                                               -   723.90                                    723.90                            
Effect on Consolidation 41.22                                      41.22                              

Effect of transition to Ind AS 48.47-                                      48.47-                              
Dividend                                             -                                               -   107.81-                                    107.81-                            
Tax on Dividend                                             -                                               -   21.95-                                      21.95-                              
Transfer to/from Retained 
Earnings                                             -                                     2,285.16 2,285.16-                                  -                                 
Balance at the end of the 
reporting period i.e. March 
31, 2017 30.25                                     2,644.69                                - 2,674.94                        
Balance at the beginning of 
the reporting period i.e. April 
01, 2017                                        30.25                                   2,644.69 -                                          2,674.94                         
Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year                                             -                                               -   1,164.62                                  1,164.62                         
Effect on Consolidation 25.94-                                      25.94-                              
Dividend                                             -                                               -   107.81-                                    107.81-                            
Tax on Dividend                                             -                                               -   21.95-                                      21.95-                              
Transfer to/from Retained 
Earnings                                             -                                     1,008.92 1,008.92-                                  -                                 
Balance at the end of the 
reporting period i.e. March 
31, 2018

30.25                                     3,653.61                                - 3,683.86                        

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W  Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Reserve & Surplus
Total

Statement Of Changes In Equity For The Year Ended March 31, 2018



(` in Lakhs)

Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Cash flow from operating activities
1,622.42           1,168.45            

253.32               254.33                
271.49               331.16                

Profit on sale of machinery (2.21)                  -                      
Dividend Income (0.83)                  (0.79)                   

(214.76)              (190.30)               
1,929.43           1,562.85            

Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities/provisions 1,837.37             (202.64)               
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (978.78)              (753.08)               

(1,409.21)           550.23                
Decrease / (increase) in Inventories (1,900.05)           (617.94)               

54.07                 -                      
(467.16)             539.42               
(457.81)              (396.08)               

(924.97)             143.34               
-                     -                      

(924.97)             143.34               

(2,646.53)           (1,299.44)            
Sale oF Fixed Assets 2.80                   -                      
Purchase of Investment (0.01)                  (50.00)                 

214.76               190.30                
Dividend received 0.83                   0.79                    

(2,428.15)          (1,158.35)           

Call received -                     0.19                    
Dividend proposed with Taxes (129.75)              (129.75)               
Long/Short Term Borrowing Taken/Repayment During the year (net) 3,933.50             1,480.39              

(271.49)              (331.16)               
3,532.26           1,019.67            

179.15              4.66                   
2,740.90             2,736.24              

2,920.04           2,740.90            

19.92                 56.87                  
77.58                 43.80                  

Fixed Deposits 2,822.55             2,640.23              
Total cash and bank balances 2,920.04           2,740.90            
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As per our report of even date ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W  Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director / CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : May 24, 2018 M No. A46398

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Decrease / (increase) in other current assets

Significant accounting policies and Notes to 
the Consolidated financial statement  

Profit before tax  and after prior period items
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation
Interest and Financial expense

Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes

Cash flows from investing activities

Movements in working capital:

Decrease / (increase) in short/long-term loans and advances

Cash generated from /(used in) operations

Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advances

Interest received

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B)

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Cash flow before extraordinary item
Extra ordinary item
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash on hand
With banks- on current account

Interest and financial Expenses paid
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended March 31, 2018 

 
Note 1 - Corporate information 
 
Oriental Veneer Products Limited (''the 
Company) & its Subisdiary (collectively 
referred to as ''the Group'') are  engaged in 
the manufacturing, buying and selling of all 
type Recron, Seat & Bearth, Coompreg 
Boards and also engaged in trading of 
timber woods,  ferrous & nonferrous metals, 
casting tools, slabs, rods, section flates & 
other ferrous & nonferrous products. The 
Group caters to both domestic and 
international markets. As at March 31, 2018, 
Oriental Veneer Products Limited (Holding) 
Company holds 100% Equity Share Capital 
of 'M/s Oriental Foundry Private Limited' 
(subsidiary). The consolidated financial 
statements comprise financial statements of 
the Group for the year ended March 31, 
2018. 
  
Note 2 - Significant accounting policies 
 

2.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 
financial statements 
 
These Consolidated financial statements of 
the Company have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter. For all 
periods up to and including the year ended 
March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its 
consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting standards 
notified under the section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)  

Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These 
Consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2018 are the first the 
Company has prepared in accordance with 
Ind AS. 
 
The financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except 
for the following assets and liabilities which 
have been measured at fair value: 
 
A. Derivative financial instruments; 

 
B. Certain financial assets and liabilities 

measured at fair value (refer accounting 
policy regarding financial instruments) 
 

The Consolidated Financial Statement 
comprises of Oriental Veneer Products 
Limited and all its subsidiaries, being the 
entitities that it controls. Controls are 
assessed in accordance with the 
requirement of Ind AS 110 - Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements are 
presented in Indian Rupees (`) and all the 
values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (` 
00,000), except when otherwise indicated. 
 
In addition, the carrying values of 
recognized assets and liabilities designated 
as hedged items in fair value hedges that 
would otherwise be carried at amortized 
cost are adjusted to record changes in the 
fair values attributable to the risks that are 
being hedged in effective hedge 
relationships. 
 
 



2.2 Principles of Consolidation  
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements 
consist of Oriental Veneer Products Limited 
(''the company") and its Subsidiary 
Company (collectively referred to as "the 
Group"). The consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared on the 
following basis: 
 
a. The financial statements of the 

Company and its subsidiaries are 
combined on a line by line basis by 
adding together like items of assets, 
liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and 
cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-
group balances and intra-group 
transactions. 
 

b. The excess of the cost to the parent of 
its investments in a subsidiary over the 
parent's portion of equity at the date on 
which investment in the subsidiary is 
made, is recognised as 'Goodwill (on 
consolidation)'. When the cost to the 
parent of its investment in a subsidiary is 
less than the parent's portion of equity 
of the subsidiary at the date on which 
investment in a subsidiary is made, the 
difference is treated as 'Capital Reserve 
(on consolidation)' in the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

c. Non Controlling Interest’s share of profit 
/ loss of consolidated subsidiaries for 
the year is identified and adjusted 
against the income of the group in order 
to arrive at the net income attributable 
to shareholders of the Company. 

 
d. Non Controlling Interest’s share of net 

assets of consolidated subsidiaries is 
identified and presented in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet separate 

from liabilities and the equity of the 
Company’s shareholders. 

 
e. As far as possible, the Consolidated 

Financial Statements are prepared using 
uniform Indian Accounting Policies for 
like transactions and other events in 
similar circumstances and are presented 
in the same manner as company's 
separate statements. 
 

2.3 Current versus non-current classification 
 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in 
the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as 
current when it is: 

 
A. Expected to be realised or intended to 

be sold or consumed in normal 
operating cycle. 

B. Held primarily for the purpose of 
trading. 

C. Expected to be realised within twelve 
months after the reporting period, or 

D. Cash or cash equivalents unless 
restricted from being exchanged or used 
to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 
 

All other assets are classified as non-current 
 

A liability is current when: 
 

A. It is expected to be settled in normal 
operating cycle. 

B. It is held primarily for the purpose of 
trading. 

C. It is due to be settled within twelve 
months after the reporting period, or 

D. There is no unconditional right to defer 
the settlement of the liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting 
period. 



The Group classifies all other liabilities as 
non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
classified as non-current assets and 
liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle. 

2.4 Foreign currencies transactions and 
translation 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are 
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on 
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the functional currency 
closing rates of exchange at the reporting 
date. 
 
Exchange differences arising on settlement 
or translation of monetary items are 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
except to the extent of exchange differences 
which are regarded as an adjustment to 
interest costs on foreign currency 
borrowings that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets, are capitalized as cost of assets. 
Additionally, exchange gains or losses on 
foreign currency borrowings taken prior to 
April 1, 2017 which are related to the 
acquisition or construction of qualifying 
assets are adjusted in the carrying cost of 
such assets. 
 
Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 
are recorded using the exchange rates at 

the date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was 
measured. The gain or loss arising on 
translation of non-monetary items 
measured at fair value is treated in line with 
the recognition of the gain or loss on the 
change in fair value of the item (i.e., 
translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or 
Statement of Profit and Loss are also 
recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and 
Loss, respectively). 
 

2.5 Fair value measurement 
 
The Group measures financial instruments at 
fair value on initial recognition. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The 
fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either: 
 
A. In the principal market for the asset or 

liability, or 
B. In the absence of a principal market, in 

the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability. 

 
The principal or the most advantageous 
market must be accessible by the Group. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is 
measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best 
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-



financial asset takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. The Company uses 
valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value 
is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices 
in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 
 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable. 
 
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is unobservable. 
 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised 
in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the Group determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in 
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period. 
 

External valuers are involved for valuation of 
significant assets, such as properties and 
unquoted financial assets. Involvement of 
external valuers is decided upon annually by 
the management. Selection criteria include 
market knowledge, reputation, 
independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. The management 
decides, after discussions with the 
Company’s external valuers, which valuation 
techniques and inputs to use for each case. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Company has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or 
liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. 
 

2.6 Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured. The following specific 
recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is recognized: 
 
Sale of goods 

 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized 
when all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have been passed 
to the buyer, usually on delivery of the 
goods. Revenue from sale of goods is 
measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, taking 
into account contractually defined terms of 
payment and excluding taxes or duties 
collected on behalf of the government. 
 
 
 
 



Income from services 
 
Revenue in respect of contracts for services 
is recognized on completion of services. 
 
Interest 
 
Interest income is recognized on a time 
proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the applicable 
interest rate. Interest income is included 
under the head “other income” in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
 
Dividends 
 
Dividend income is recognized when the 
company’s right to receive dividend is 
established by the reporting date. 
 

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 
 
Since there is no change in the functional 
currency, the Group has elected to continue 
with the carrying value for all of its property, 
plant and equipment as recognised in its 
Indian GAAP financial statements as 
deemed cost at the transition date, viz., April 
1, 2016. 
 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at 
cost of acquisition or construction net of 
accumulated depreciation and impairment  
property, plant and equipment are 
capitalised at cost, including non-cenvatable 
excise duty, wherever applicable. All 
significant costs relating to the acquisition 
and installation of property, plant and 
equipment are capitalised. Such cost 
includes the cost of replacing part of the 
property, plant and equipment and 
borrowing costs for long-term construction 
projects if the recognition criteria are met. 
 

When significant parts of plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at 
intervals, the Group depreciates them 
separately based on their specific useful 
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is 
performed, its cost is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the 
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss as 
incurred. The present value of the expected 
cost for the decommissioning of an asset 
after its use is included in the cost of the 
respective asset if the recognition criteria for 
a provision are met. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of 
the replaced part is derecognised. 
 
The identified components are depreciated 
over their useful lives, the remaining asset is 
depreciated over the life of the principal 
asset. Depreciation on the identified 
components has been provided for on 
straight line method at the rates prescribed 
and in the manner specified in Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation 
on additions is provided on Pro-rata basis 
for the period for which the Assets are put 
to use. Assets costing ` 5000/- or less are 
fully depreciated in the year of purchase. 
 
Freehold land is carried at cost. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment are reviewed at each 



financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 
 

2.8 Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are 
measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible 
assets, excluding capitalized development 
costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is 
reflected in the statement of profit and loss 
in the year in which the expenditure is 
incurred. 

 
The amortization period and the 
amortization method are reviewed at least 
at each financial year end. If the expected 
useful life of the asset is significantly 
different from previous estimates, the 
amortization period is changed accordingly. 
 
The summary of amortization policy applied 
to the Company’s intangible assets is as 
below: 
 

Type of Asset Life (Years) 

Computer Software 5 

 
2.9 Borrowing costs 

 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction of qualifying asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use are 
capitalized as part of the cost of the 
respective asset. All other borrowing costs 
are charged to the Consolidated Profit and 
Loss accounts for the period for which they 
are incurred. 
 

2.10 Leases 
 

Company in its capacity as lessee 
 
Finance leases, which effectively transfer to 
the company substantially all the risks and 
benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalized at the inception 
of the lease term at the lower of the fair 
value of the leased property and present 
value of minimum lease payments. Lease 
payments are apportioned between the 
finance charges and reduction of the lease 
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Finance charges are recognized as 
finance costs in the statement of profit and 
loss. Lease management fees, legal charges 
and other initial direct costs of lease are 
capitalized. 
 

2.11 Inventories 
 

Raw materials, components, stores and 
spares are valued at lower of cost and net 
realizable value. However, materials and 
other items held for use in the production of 
inventories are not written down below cost 
if the finished products in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or 
above cost. Cost of raw materials, 
components and stores and spares is 
determined on First-in First-Out basis. 
 
Finished goods are valued at lower of cost 
and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
materials and labour and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on normal 
operating capacity. Cost of finished goods 
includes excise duty and is determined on 
First-in First-Out basis. 

 



2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets -   
Property, Plant and Equipment and Other 
Intangible Assets 

 
The Group assesses at each reporting date 
as to whether there is any indication that 
any property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets or group of assets, called 
cash generating units (CGU) may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists the 
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is 
estimated to determine the extent of 
impairment, if any. When it is not possible 
to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the CGU to which 
the asset belongs. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, 
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less 
cost of disposal and value in use. Value in 
use is based on the estimated future cash 
flows, discounted to their present value 
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time 
value of money and risk specific to the 
assets. 
 
The impairment loss recognised in prior 
accounting period is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimate of 
recoverable amount. 

 
2.13 Retirement and other employee benefits 

 
Retirement benefit in the form of provident 
fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 
contributions to the provident fund are 
charged to the statement of profit and loss 
for the year when the contributions are due. 

The group has no obligation, other than the 
contribution payable to the provident fund. 
 
The Group operates one defined benefit 
plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The 
costs of providing benefits under these 
plans are determined on the basis of 
actuarial valuation at each year-end. 
Actuarial valuation is carried out for plan 
using the projected unit credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses for defined 
benefit plan are recognized in full in the 
period in which they occur in the statement 
of profit and loss. 
 

2.14 Income taxes 
 
Tax expense comprises of current and 
deferred tax.  Current income tax is 
measured at the amount expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities in accordance 
with the Income-Tax Act, 1961. Deferred 
income taxes reflects the impact of current 
year timing differences between taxable 
income and accounting income for the year 
and reversal of timing differences of earlier 
years. 
 
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax 
rates and the tax laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable 
right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities relate to the taxes on income 
levied by same governing taxation laws. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to 
the extent that there is reasonable certainty 
that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax 
assets can be realized. 
 



The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 
The group writes-down the carrying amount 
of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is 
no longer reasonably certain that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available 
against which deferred tax asset can be 
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to 
the extent that it becomes reasonably 
certain that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available. 
 
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year 
is charged to the statement of profit and 
loss as current tax. The group recognizes 
MAT credit available as an asset only to the 
extent that there is convincing evidence that 
the company will pay normal income tax 
during the specified period, i.e., the period 
for which MAT credit is allowed to be 
carried forward. In the year in which the 
company recognizes MAT credit as an asset 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Accounting for Credit Available in respect of 
Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by 
way of credit to the statement of profit and 
loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement”. 
 

2.15 Earnings Per Share 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by 
dividing the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders (after 
deducting attributable taxes) by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. 
 

2.16 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets 
 
Provisions involving substantial degree of 
estimation in measurement are recognized 
when there is a present obligation as a 

result of past events and it is probable that 
there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but 
are disclosed in the notes. Contingent 
Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed 
in the financial statements. 
 

2.17 Financial instruments 
 
Financial Assets 
 
A. Initial recognition and measurement 
 
All financial assets and liabilities are initially 
recognized at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities, which are not at fair value 
through profit or loss, are adjusted to the 
fair value on initial recognition. Purchase 
and sale of financial assets are recognised 
using trade date accounting. 
 
B. Subsequent measurement 
 

a. Financial assets carried at amortised 
cost (AC) 

 
A financial asset is measured at amortised 
cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

 
b. Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI) 
 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if 
it is held within a business model whose 



objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

 
c. Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss (FVTPL) 
 

A financial asset which is not classified in 
any of the above categories are measured 
at FVTPL. 

 
C. Investment in subsidiaries 
 
The Company has accounted for its 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint venture at cost. 
 
D. Other Equity Investments 
 
All other equity investments are measured 
at fair value, with value changes recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for 
those equity investments for which the 
Group has elected to present the value 
changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’. 
 
E. Impairment of financial assets 
 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group 
uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for 
evaluating impairment of financial assets 
other than those measured at fair value 
through profit and loss (FVTPL). 
 
Expected credit losses are measured 
through a loss allowance at an amount 
equal to: 
 
a. The 12-months expected credit losses 

(expected credit losses that result from 

those default events on the financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date); or 

 
b. Full lifetime expected credit losses 

(expected credit losses that result from 
all possible default events over the life 
of the financial instrument). 

 
For trade receivables Group applies 
simplified approach’ which requires 
expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of the receivables. 
The Group uses historical default rates to 
determine impairment loss on the portfolio 
of trade receivables. At every reporting date 
these historical default rates are reviewed 
and changes in the forward looking 
estimates are analysed. 
 
For other assets, the Group uses 12 month 
ECL to provide for impairment loss where 
there is no significant increase in credit risk. 
If there is significant increase in credit risk 
full lifetime ECL is used. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
A. Initial recognition and measurement 

 
All financial liabilities are recognized at fair 
value and in case of loans, net of directly 
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature 
are directly recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 
 
B. Subsequent measurement 

 
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. For 
trade and other payables maturing within 
one year from the balance sheet date, the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value 



due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 
 

2.18 Critical accounting judgments and key 
sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The preparation of the Group’s financial 
statements requires management to make 
judgement, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amount of revenue, 
expenses, assets and liabilities and the 
accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty abou 
Impairment of financial assetst these 
assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
or liabilities affected in future periods. 
 
A. Decommissioning Liabilities 

The liability for decommissioning costs are 
recognized when the Group has an 
obligation to perform site restoration 
activity. The recognition and measurement 
of decommissioning provisions involves the 
use of estimates and assumptions. These 
include; the timing of abandonment of well 
and related facilities which would depend 
upon the ultimate life of the field, expected 
utilization of assets by other fields, the 
scope of abandonment activity and pre-tax 
rate applied for discounting. 
 
B. Recoverability of trade receivable 

 
Judgements are required in assessing the 
recoverability of overdue trade receivables 
and determining whether a provision 
against those receivables is required. Factors 
considered include the credit rating of the 
counterparty, the amount and timing of 
anticipated future payments and any 
possible actions that can be taken to 
mitigate the risk of non-payment. 

C. Provisions 
 

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in 
the period when it becomes probable that 
there will be a future outflow of funds 
resulting from past operations or events and 
the amount of cash outflow can be reliably 
estimated. The timing of recognition and 
quantification of the liability requires the 
application of judgement to existing facts 
and circumstances, which can be subject to 
change. The carrying amounts of provisions 
and liabilities are reviewed regularly and 
revised to take account of changing facts 
and circumstances. 
 
D. Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The Group assesses at each reporting date 
whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. If any indication exists, the 
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating 
Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. It is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or a 
groups of assets. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if no 



such transactions can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. 
 
E. Impairment of financial assets 
 
The impairment provisions for financial 
assets are based on assumptions about risk 
of default and expected cash loss rates. The 
Company uses judgement in making these 
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
impairment calculation, based on 
Company’s past history, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting 
period. 
 

2.19 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS 
 
The Group has adopted Ind AS with effect 
from April 01, 2017 with comparatives being 
restated. Accordingly the impact of 
transition has been provided in the Opening 
Reserves as at April 01, 2016. The figures for 
the previous period have been restated, 
regrouped and reclassified wherever 
required to comply with the requirement of 
Ind AS and Schedule III. 
 
Exceptions applied 
 
The Group has applied all the mandatory 
exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101. 
Following are the exceptions with significant 
impact: 
 
A. Estimates 

 
The estimates at April 1, 2016 and at March 
31, 2017 are consistent with those made for 
the same dates in accordance with Indian 
GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any 
differences in accounting policies) apart 
from the following items where application 
of Indian GAAP did not require estimation: 

FVTOCI – unquoted and quoted equity 
shares 
 
FVTPL – debt securities 
 
Impairment of financial assets based on 
expected credit loss model 
 
The estimates used by the Group to present 
these amounts in accordance with Ind AS 
reflect conditions at April 1, 2016, the date 
of transition to Ind AS and as of March 31, 
2017. 
 
B. Classification and measurement of 

financial assets 
 

The Group has classified financial assets on 
the basis of the facts and circumstances that 
exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. 

 
C. Derecognition of financial assets and 

financial liabilities 
 

The Group has elected to apply the 
derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 
prospectively for transactions occurring on 
or after April 1, 2016. However, for certain 
financial assets and financial liabilities 
derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 
were applied retrospectively where 
information needed was obtained at the 
time of initially accounting for 
derecognition. 

 
Exemptions applied 
 
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain 
exemptions from the retrospective 
application of certain requirements under 
Ind AS. The Group has applied the following  
 
 



A. Exemptions from retrospective 
application 
 

The Group has applied the exemption as 
provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application 
of Ind AS 103, “Business Combinations” to 
business combinations consummated prior 
to April 1, 2016 (the “Transition Date”), 
pursuant to which goodwill/capital reserve 
arising from a business combination has 
been stated at the carrying amount prior to 
the date of transition under Indian GAAP. 
The Group has also applied the exemption 
for past business combinations to 
acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries / 
associates / joint ventures consummated 
prior to the Transition Date. 

 
B. Fair value as deemed cost exemption 
 
The Group has elected to measure items of 
property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets at its carrying value of 
property, plant and equipments as 
recognised in financial statements as per 
Indian GAAP and regard those values as 
deemed costs on the date of transition and 
has carried forward gross block and 
accumulated depreciation only for discloser 
purposes. 

 
C. Cumulative translation differences 
 
The Group has elected to apply Ind AS 21 - 
The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange 
Rate prospectively. Accordingly all 
cumulative gains and losses recognised are 
reset to zero by transferring it to retained 
earnings. 
 
 
 
 

D. Long Term Foreign Currency 
Monetary Items 

 
The Group continues the policy of 
capitalising exchange differences arising on 
translation of long term foreign currency 
monetary items. 
 
E. Investments in subsidiaries, joint 

ventures and associates 
The Company has elected to measure 
investment in subsidiaries, joint venture and 
associate at cost. 

 
F. Decommissioning liabilities 
 
The Company has elected to apply the 
transitional provision with respect to 
recognition of Decommissioning, 
Restoration and Similar Liabilities. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 4 - Goodwill (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Goodwill 21.46               47.40              
[As per IND AS 110]
Total 21.46              47.40             

Note 5 - Investments - Non Current (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Non-trade investments (valued at cost)
Investment in equity shares (quoted)

58.34               58.34              

Less: Provision for Permanent Dimunition in Value of Investment (note - 38) (58.34)            (58.34)           
Closing Balance [A] -                  -                 

Investment in equity shares (unquoted)
0.25                 0.25                
5.00                 5.00                

 Shares of SVC Co-Op Bank Ltd. [25 Shares @ 29/-] 0.01                 -                
Closing Balance [B] 5.26                 5.25                

Total [A+B] 5.26                5.25               

Note 6 - Loans - Non Current (` in Lakhs)

(Unsecured, Considered Good) As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Security Deposits 125.44             64.46              
Duties under Dispute * 27.01               27.01              

Total 152.45            91.47             

* Duties under Dispute showing amount which is related to Excise.

Note 7 - Deferred Tax Assets (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)  76.28               -                 

Total 76.28              -                

 20,000 (Previous Year 20,000) Equity Share of Rs.25 Each in SVC Co-Op Bank Ltd.
 2,500 (Previous Year 2,500) Equity Share of Rs. 10 Each in Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd

2,00,500( Previous Year 2,00,500) Equity Share of Rs.. 10 Each Fully Paid up in Nageshwar 
Investment Ltd.
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Note 8 - Inventories (Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Raw materials 1,347.70          783.33            
Finished goods 88.99               251.53            
Semi-Finished goods 3,088.22          1,966.77         
Stores & Spares and Packing Material 422.64             28.61              
Stock in Trade 24.17               41.44              

Total 4,971.73        3,071.68       

Note 9 - Trade receivables (` in Lakhs)

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Trade Receivables 3,935.23          2,892.65         

Total 3,935.23        2,892.65       

Note 10 - Cash and Cash Equivalents (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Balance with banks:
On current accounts 77.58               43.80              
Cash on hand 19.92               56.87              

97.49              100.67          

Other fixed deposit with banks
Fixed Deposit with Banks maturity* 2,822.55          2,640.23         

Total 2,920.04        2,740.90       

* Includes ` 1079.49 Lakhs (Previous Year  ` 799.08 Lakhs ) Fixed Deposit are Under Lien with Bank.

Note 11 - Loans - Current (` in Lakhs)

(Unsecured, Considered Good) As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Advance recoverable in cash or kind 571.28             536.15            
Balances with statutory / government authorities 1,759.97          448.20            
MAT Credit 1.34                 -                 

Total 2,332.58        984.35          
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Note 12 - Other current assets (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Interest accrued on Deposit with MSEB 1.65 2.34 
Interest accrued on FDR with banks 71.89 125.27            

Total 73.54  127.60 

Note 13 - Share Capital (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Authorized Share Capital
6,000,000 (Previous year 6,000,000 ) equity share of Rs. 10 each 600.00             600.00            

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up

53,90,300 (Previous year 53,90,300) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 539.03             539.03            

Total 539.03  539.03 

a. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
(` in Lakhs)

Number of Shares `  Number of Shares `

At the beginning of the period 53.90 539.03 53.90 539.03            
Add: Issue of Shares during the year - - - - 

53.90  539.03  53.90  539.03 
Less:-  Calls in Arrears - - -    -
Outstanding at the end of the year 53.90  539.03  53.90    539.03

Number of Shares % holding  Number of Shares % holding

Name of the shareholder

Vision Infpro (India) Private Ltd. 5.50 10.20% 5.50 10.20%
Vali N Mithiborwala 4.19 7.77% 4.19 7.77%
Saleh N Mithiborwala 3.62 6.71% 3.62 6.71%

As at March 31, 2018

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Group has only one class of equity shares having a per value of Rs. 10 per share. Each Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be receive remaining assets of the company, after  distributi-
on of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company*

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2018

* As per records of the Group, Including its Register of Shareholders/ Members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

As at March 31, 2017
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Note 14 - Other Equity (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
A. Reserve & Surplus March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
a) Capital Reserve*

Opening Balance 30.25 30.25 
Add: Transfer during the year - - 
Closing balance 30.25 30.25             

b) General Reserve

Opening Balance 2,644.69          359.54            
Add: Transfer during the year 1,008.92          2,285.16         
Closing balance 3,653.61 2,644.69       

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening Balance - 1,601.32 
Profit for the year 1,164.62          723.90 
Effect on Consolidation (25.94) 41.22 
Effect of transition to Ind AS - (48.47) 

1,138.67        2,414.91       
Less : Appropriations
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 107.81             107.81            
[Dividend per Share Rs.2/-]
Tax on Dividend 21.95 21.95 
Transfer to General Reserve 1,008.92          2,285.16         
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss - - 

Total 3,683.86        2,674.94       

Note 15 - Borrowings - Non Current (` in Lakhs)

As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` ` ` `
Secured*
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks
Vehicle Loan 7.15 13.99 13.63 27.91 
Term loan 953.52             1,187.18 165.94             132.03            

960.67            1,201.17 179.56            159.95          

Unsecured
Loans from related parties (note - 32) 7,459.06          3,580.08 - - 

7,459.06 3,580.08 - - 

8,419.73 4,781.25 179.56            159.95 
The above amount includes
Amount disclosed under the - (179.56) (159.95)           
Net amount 8,419.73 4,781.25 - - 

Non-current portion Current maturities

*a. Term loans are secured by way of hypothecation of plant & machinery and other fixed assets at Bharuch, Kutch, Mortgage of the
factory land & building and office building situated at Bharuch, Kutch, and by the personal guarantee from managing director and
director.

*b.  Loan from bank includes vehicles loan secured by hypothecation of vehicles acquired under said loans.
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Note 15.1- Loan from Related Parties (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Exim Trade Links (I) Private Limited 551.90 558.90            
Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited 1,495.00          1,495.00         
Mr. Saleh N Mithiborwala 4,610.70          1,111.50         
Mr. Vali N Mithiborwala 801.46 414.68            

7,459.06 3,580.08       

Note 16 - Provision - Non Current (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 53.14 47.87 

Total 53.14 47.87             

Note 17 - Deferred tax liabilities (Net) (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Deferred tax liabilities
Related to fixed assets 87.78 131.45            
Deferred tax assets
Less: Disallowances under Income tax Act, 1961 - - 

87.78 131.45 

Note 18 - Borrowings - Current (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Secured
Working capital loan
From Banks

Rupee Loan* 4,012.19          3,720.71         

Total 4,012.19 3,720.71       

Note 19 - Trade Payables (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Micro,Small & Medium Enterprises - - 
Others Payable 3,295.29          1,632.79         

Total 3,295.29 1,632.79       

* Working Capital Loan from The Saraswat Co. Op. Bank Ltd and The Shamrao Vithal Co. Op Bank Ltd. are Secured by hypothecation of
present and future Inventories, Book debts and other current assets of the Holding Company. The Working Capital loans are further
guaranteed by Directors of the Holding Company, including Managing Director of the Holding Company. Working Capital loans are
further secured by first charge on the Fixed Assets of the Holding Company.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 20 - Other Financial Liabilities - Current (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Current maturities of Long Term Liabilities (Secured) 179.56             159.95            
Others Liabilities* 551.05             378.53            
Balance with Bank#

- - 

Total 730.61  538.48 

# Due to issue of cheque

Note 21 - Provision - Current (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Other 
Income Tax 579.09             423.71            
Provision for Gratuity 9.77 9.06 
Provision for Excise duty* - 13.26 
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 107.81             107.81 
Tax on Dividend 43.89 21.95 

Total 740.56  575.78 

Note 22 - Revenue from operations (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `

Value of Sales 12,948.09        9,745.42         
Add: Excise duty 166.48             634.01            
Add: Other Tax 154.04             - 
Gross 13,268.61  10,379.43  

Detail of products sold (Net)
As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Seat & Berth 7,726.79          5,160.25         
Recorn 132.16             365.98            
Compreg Board & Articles thereof 1,789.18          1,999.40         
Furniture & Parts 74.46 16.48 

148.27            
Coated Upholstery Fabric 101.54             265.33            
Luggage Rack - 123.11 
Cast Steel Bogie 1,034.95          999.42 
Face Plate for Buffer Plunger - 51.88 
Coupler 469.81             12.59 
Others 951.68             1.35 

12,280.57  9,144.05  

*Other liabilities includes statutory dues, creditor for capital expenditure, advances from customer and other expenses
payable.

* The Group had recognised liability based on substantial degree of estimation for excise duty payable on clearance of goods lying in
stock as on March 31, 2017 of ` 13.25 Lakhs as per the estimated pattern of dispatches. During the year, ` 13.25 Lakhs was utilised for
clearance of goods. Provision recognised under this class for the year is Nil which is outstanding as on  March 31, 2018. Actual outflow is
expected in the next financial year.

2
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Traded goods sold (Net)
As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Gurjan Round Logs - - 
Polyster Staples Fibers 811.69 596.87            

811.69            596.87 

Details of Sale of Services(Net)
As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Installation Charges /Labour Charges 14.24 4.50 

14.24 4.50 

Note 23 - Other income (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Interest on Bank FDR 174.38 188.21            
Interest on Other (MSEB Deposits) 16.38 4.27 
Dividend on non current investment 0.83 0.83 
Interest on Calls in Arrears - 0.58 
Interest on Railway Security Deposit 24.00 - 
Foreign Currency Fluctuation 5.22 - 
Profit on Sale of Vehicle 2.21 - 
Excess Provision Written Back 8.25 - 

Total 231.27            193.89 

Note 24 - Cost of material and consumed (` in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Opening Stock 811.94 1,305.30         
Add: Purchases (Including stores ) 9,401.34          6,379.03         

10,213.28        7,684.33         
Less: Closing Stock (including stores) 1,770.34          811.94            

Total 8,442.93        6,872.40       

Traded goods purchase
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Polyster Staples Fibers 751.15 615.31            
Gurjan Round Logs - - 

751.15            615.31 

Detail of material consumed
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Raw Material 5,885.70          4,816.30         
Stores & others and Packing Material 1,195.06          811.87            

7,080.76 5,628.17       
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Detail of inventory
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Opening
Raw material 423.69             1,105.99         
Stores & others and Packing Material 28.61 151.93            

452.30            1,257.92       

Closing
Raw material 869.21             423.69            
Stores & others and Packing Material 422.64             28.61 

1,291.86 452.30 

Note 25 - Change in inventories (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Inventories (at close)
Finished Goods 88.99 251.53            
Work in Progress 3,088.22          1,966.77         
Stock in Trade 24.17 41.44 

3,201.39 2,259.75       
Inventories (at commencement)
Finished Goods 251.53             135.26            
Work in Progress 1,966.77          1,013.18         
Stock in Trade 41.44 

2,259.75 1,148.44       

Total (941.64)          (1,111.30)      

Note 26 - Employee benefit expense (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,007.27          800.73            
Contribution to provident and other funds 27.52 28.75 
Staff welfare expenses 132.73             91.56 

Total 1,167.52 921.04 

Note 27 - Finance Cost (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Interest on term loan 67.31 115.79            
Interest on Working capital loans 168.11             183.19            
Others 36.07 32.18 

Total 271.49            331.16 

Note 28 - Depreciation and amortization expense (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Depreciation of tangible assets 252.23             252.03            
Amortization of intangible assets 1.08 2.30 

Total 253.32            254.33 
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Note 29 - Other expenses (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Manufacturing expenses

Power and fuel 335.00             262.46            
Labour Charges 180.50             74.19              
Testing Charges 4.98                 3.78                
Water Charges 24.22               20.86              
Excise duty* -                  5.60                
Factory Expenses 51.40               57.70              
Repairs and maintenance -                  -                 
Plant and machinery 18.57               11.22              

614.67            435.81          

Sales & Administration Expenses

Advertisement 3.53                      2.58                    
Books and Periodicals 0.27                      0.89                    
Business Promotion 13.05                    5.22                    
Communication costs 31.05                    35.01                  
Commision Expenses 8.23                      -                      
Computer Expenses 2.86                      5.96                    
Discount & Rebate (2.39)                    1.10                    
Electricity Expenses (Office) 6.66                      6.02                    
Exchange gain loss (net) -                       2.12                    
Fees And Subscription 4.40                      2.88                    
Freight Out Ward 268.36                  36.50                  
Inspection Charges 0.11                      1.63                    
Insurance 19.33                    17.76                  
Legal and professional fees 45.58                    42.98                  
Office and Administrative 102.46                  67.75                  
Payment to auditor 6.50                      6.50                    
Postage & Telegram 6.06                      5.53                    
Printing and stationery 24.38                    16.28                  
Rent, Rates and taxes 16.93                    24.03                  
VAT/Other Taxes 154.04                  -                      
Repair and Mainteance 11.91                    2.58                    
Security Charges 20.07                    11.36                  
Tender Fees 4.69                      5.68                    
Testing Charges 2.14                      0.89                    
Travelling and conveyance 336.23                  101.65                
Vehicle Expenses 65.09                    46.53                  
Preliminary Expenses w/off -                       2.70                    

1,151.54            452.12              

Total 1,766.21            887.93              

Payment to Auditor

As auditor:
Audit fee 6.50                      6.50                    

6.50                    6.50                  

Note 30 - Earnings per shares (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Profit after tax (Rs) 1,164.62          723.90            
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 53.90               53.90              
Face value per share (Rs) 10.00               10.00              

Basic & Diluted earnings per share 21.61              13.43             

* Excise Duty shown under expenditure represents the aggregate of excise duty borne by the company and difference between excise
duty on opening and closing stock of finished goods.



Note 31 - Related Party Disclosure [as certified by Management]
(a) List of related parties where control exists and related with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
Name of the Related Party

M/s. Oriental Foundry Pvt Ltd.

Mr. Saleh N Mithiborwala [Wholetime Director/CFO]
Mr. Vali N Mithiborwala [Wholetime Director]
Ms. Priya V Bhagat [Company Secretary]

M/s. V.K.Mithiborwala & Co.Pvt.Ltd
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd.
M/s. Gen Wood Products Pvt Ltd.
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited [formerly 
M/s. Exim Trade Links (I) Pvt Ltd.
M/s. Vision Housing & Infrastructure Co Pvt Ltd.
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd.
M/s Trishala Veneer Private Limited

b) Transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2018 (` in Lakhs)
Particulars 

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Salary paid
Ms.Priya Bhagat -               -               5.06               1.25              -              -              
Mr. Satish V Bhanushali -               -               -                2.22              -              -              

Unsecured Loans taken
Mr Saleh N Mithiborwala -               -               3,499.20        965.50          -              -              
Mr Valli N Mithiborwala -               -               387.00           341.00          -              -              
M/s. Exim Trade Links (I) Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               -              558.90        
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited -               -               -                -               -              1,495.00      
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd. -               -               -                -               -              7.00            
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited. -               -               -                -               -              340.00        

Unsecured Loans repayment
Mr Vali N Mithiborwala -               -               0.22               -               -              -              
M/s. V.K.Mithiborwala & Co.Pvt.Ltd -               -               -                -               -              2,228.62      
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd. -               -               -                -               -              926.88        
M/s. Gen Wood Products Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               -              21.10          
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited -               -               -                -               -              1,444.41      
M/s. Exim Trade Links (I) Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               7.00             412.90        
M/s. Vision Housing & Infrastructure Co Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               -              31.11          

Sales of Goods
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               967.20         718.27        
M/s Gen Wood Products Private Limited                          -               -               -                -               1.51             3.57            

Purchase of Goods/Land/Machinery
M/s. Industrial Laminates (I) Pvt. Ltd. -               -               -                -               26.79           25.07          
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               841.87         1,255.96      
M/s Gen Wood Products Private Limited                          -               -               -                -               1.85             0.85            
M/s. Trishala Veener Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               1,275.93       -              

Expenses Reimbursement
M/s. V.K.Mithiborwala & Co.Pvt.Ltd -               -               -                -               3.61             3.06            
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited -               -               -                -               1.00             -              

C) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2018 (` in Lakhs)
Creditor/Debtor outstanding at the year end
M/s Industrial Laminates (I) Private Limited -               -               -                -               -              5.14            
M/s. Oriental Technocraft Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               370.62         48.35          
M/s Trishala Veneer Private Limited -               -               -                -               1,573.18       -              

Loans Taken/Given Outstanding at year end
Mr. Saleh N Mithiborwala -               -               4,610.70        1,111.50       -              -              
Mr. Valli N Mithiborwala -               -               801.46           414.68          -              -              
M/s. Virtue Infrastructures Private Limited [formerly -               -               -                -               -              1,495.00      
M/s. Exim Trade Links (I) Pvt Ltd. -               -               -                -               -              558.90        

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Relationship

Subsidiary Company

Key Management Personnel

Subsidiary Company  Key Management Enterprises significantly 

Enterprises in which Key Management 
Personnel exercises Significant 
Influence or their relatives
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(` in Lakhs)

Profit and Loss Account As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

` `
Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

Current service cost  5.97  18.37
Interest cost on benefit obligation Nil Nil
Expected return on plan assets NA NA
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognized in the year
Net benefit expense    5.97 18.37

Balance sheet
As at As at

Benefit asset/ liability March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Present value of defined benefit obligation 62.91 56.94 
Fair value of plan assets Nil Nil
Plan asset / (liability) 62.91  56.94  

Note 32 - Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The Group has not received any intimation from "suppliers" regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act,2006 and hence disclosure, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with 
interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been given.

Note 33 -  Segment information

i) Primary (Business) Segment
In accordance with the requirements of Ind Accounting Standard 108 “Segment Reporting” issued by the ICAI, the Group 
business consist of one reportable segment i.e. Seat & Bearth, Recorn Densified Thermal Bonded Blocks, Recorn Wadding, 
Comperg, Foldable Mattress hence no separate disclosures pertaining to attributable Revenues, Profits, Assets, Liabilities, 
Capital Employed are given.

ii) Secondary (Geographical) Segment
Secondary segment reporting is performed on the basis of geographical location of the Customers. The operation of the 
Group comprises domestic sales and export sales. The export sale consideration is not materialized hence no separate 
disclosure pertaining to attributable Revenues, Profits, Assets, Liabilities, Capital Employed are given.

Note 34 - Gratuity
The company and its subsidiary operates one-defined plans, viz., gratuity Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has 
completed atleast five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of 
service. 

The Company has charged the gratuity provision of ` 5.97 Lakhs in the profit and loss accounts in the year ended March 31, 
2018 (previous year, ` 18.37 lacs). The gross obligation toward the gratuity at the end of the year on discountinuance is ` 

62.91 Lacs (previous year, ` 56.94 Lacs). The Company has not funded the gratuity obligation against any plan assets.
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Opening defined benefit obligation 56.93               42.68              
Current service cost 5.98                 14.26              
Interest cost Nil Nil
Benefits paid Nil Nil
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation -                  -                 
Closing defined benefit obligation 62.91              56.94             

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Opening fair value of plan assets Nil Nil
Expected return N.A N.A
Contributions by employer N.A N.A
Benefits paid N.A N.A
Actuarial gains / (losses) N.A N.A
Closing fair value of plan assets Nil Nil

Note 35 - Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Stock in Trade -                  -                 
Raw Material & Consumables 282.24             24.42              

Total 282.24            24.42             

Note 36 - Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis) (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Travelling Expenses 11.77               27.50              

Total 11.77              27.50             

Withdrawal Rates

Rate of Discounting

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, taking into consideration the general trend in salary rise and 
inflation rate.

Mortality Table
7.85% P.A.

58 Years

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

Retirement Age

LIC (2006-08)

Future Salary Rise 5.00% P.A.
2.00 % P.A.

Gratuity
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Note 37 - Imported and indigenous raw material, components and spare parts consumed
(` in Lakhs)

% of total 
consumption

` % of total 
consumption

`

Imported 3.28% 282.24                  0.35% 24.42              
Indigenous 96.72% 8,319.09               99.65% 6,905.12         

Total 100% 8,601.33              100% 6,929.54       

Note 38 - Contigent Liabilities (` in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
` `

Disputed Liabilities not provided for
Central Excise                14.27               14.27 
Income Tax                     -               181.35 
Corporate Gurantee 2,225.00          2,225.00         

Note 39 - Derivative instrument

Foreign currency exposures of the Group are not hedged by derivative instrument.
(` in Lakhs)

$ ` $ `

4.41                 283.12                  0.33                 20.19              
Advance for Import Purchase 0.46                 29.69              

Note 41 - Previous Year Figures has been recast/restated.

Note 40 - Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, loans & advances and outstanding balance are subject to confirmation and 
reconciliation.

Payments for Import Purchases made during the year

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

Letter of Credit outstanding with Saraswat Co-Operative Bank Ltd. at the end of the year for ` 122.73 Lakhs (Previous year ` 149.58 
Lakhs) and Bank Gurantee of ` 198.93 Lakhs  (Previous Year Rs. "` 77.35 Lakhs").

March 31, 2017



Note No. 42 - First Time IND AS Adoption Reconciliation

(` in Lakhs)

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition to 

Ind AS

As per Ind AS 
balance sheet

Previous 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition to 

Ind AS

As per Ind AS 
balance sheet

ASSETS
Non - Current assets
Property ,Plant  and equipment 3,312.49       -               3,312.49       3,349.97       -               3,349.97       
Capital Work in Progress 1,367.44       -               1,367.44       282.55         -               282.55         
Goodwill 47.40           -               47.40           1.22             -               1.22             
Other Intangible Assets 1.08             -               1.08             3.38             -               3.38             
Financial assets -               -               -               
Investments 5.25             -               5.25             5.25             -               5.25             
Loans 91.47           -               91.47           89.64           -               89.64           

Other Non Current Assets -               -               -               2.70             -               2.70             
Total Non-Current Assets 4,825.13     -              4,825.13     3,734.71     -              3,734.71     

Current Assets
Inventories 3,071.68       -               3,071.68       2,453.74       -               2,453.74       
Financial assets -               -               -               
Trade receivables 2,892.65       -               2,892.65       2,139.57       -               2,139.57       
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,740.90       -               2,740.90       2,736.24       -               2,736.24       
Loans 984.35         -               984.35         743.90         -               743.90         

Other Current Assets 127.60         -               127.60         30.28           -               30.28           
Total Current Assets 9,817.18     -              9,817.18     8,103.72     -              8,103.72     
Total Assets 14,642.31   -              14,642.31   11,838.43   -              11,838.43   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 539.03         -               539.03         538.84         -               538.84         
Other Equity 2,674.94       -               2,674.94       1,991.11       -               1,991.11       
Total Equity 3,213.97     -              3,213.97     2,529.95     -              2,529.95     

Non-Controlling Interest -              -              -              45.04          -              45.04          

Non - Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities -               -               -               
Borrowings 4,781.25       -               4,781.25       4,134.87       -               4,134.87       

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 131.45         -               131.45         157.74         -               157.74         
Provisions 47.87           -               47.87           34.98           -               34.98           
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,960.57     -              4,960.57     4,327.59     -              4,327.59     

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3,720.71       -               3,720.71       1,999.56       -               1,999.56       
Trade Payables 1,632.79       -               1,632.79       1,633.72       -               1,633.72       
Others 538.48         -               538.48         812.39         -               812.39         

Provisions 575.78         -               575.78         490.18         -               490.18         
Total Current Liabilities 6,467.76     -              6,467.76     4,935.85     -              4,935.85     
Total Liabilities 11,428.34   -              11,428.34   9,263.44     -              9,263.44     
Total Equity & Liabilties 14,642.31   -              14,642.31   11,838.43   -              11,838.43   

As at March 31, 2017 As at April 01, 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2017 and April 01, 2016



2. Reconciliation of Profit and Other Equity between Ind AS and Previous GAAP

(` in Lakhs)

Nature of Adjustments Notes Net Profit
Year Ended 
March 31, 

2017

As at March 
31, 2017

As at April 01, 
2016

Net Profit/Other Equity's as per Previous Indian GAAP 723.90 2,674.94 1,991.11       
Fair Valuation as deemed cost for Property, Plant & Equipment -             - - 
Fair Valuation for Financial Assets -             - - 
Deferred Tax -             - - 
Total -  -  -  
Net Profit before OCI/Other Equity as per Ind AS 723.90  2,674.94  1,991.11  

(` in Lakhs)

 Previous 
GAAP 

 Effect of 
Transition to 

Ind AS 
 As per Ind AS 

Income
Revenue from operations 9,745.42     634.01       10,379.43     
Other Income 193.89 - 193.89
Total Revenue 9,939.31  634.01  10,573.32  

Expenses
 Cost of Material Consumed 6,872.40     - 6,872.40 
 Purchase of traded goods 615.31 - 615.31
 Changes in Inventories of FG (1,111.30)    - (1,111.30)
 Excise duty - 634.01 634.01 
 Employee Benefits Expense 921.04 - 921.04
 Finance Costs 331.16 - 331.16
 Depreciation / Amortisation 254.33 - 254.33
 Other Expenses 887.93 - 887.93
Total Expenses 8,770.86  634.01  9,404.87  
Profit Before Tax 1,168.45  - 1,168.45 
Tax expenses
Current tax (422.37) 
Deferred tax 26.29 

-  (422.37)
-  26.29 

Total tax expenses (396.08)  - (396.08) 
Profit for the year 772.37  - 772.37 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of
For Amarnath Sharma & Co. ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LTD.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 100300W  Saleh N. Mithiborwala

Whole Time Director/CFO
DIN: 00171171

Karim N. Mithiborwala
Managing Director

Amarnath Sharma DIN: 00171326
Proprietor
Membership no. 039579 Priya V Bhagat
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary
Date : May 24, 2018 M.N: A46398

Other Equity

Year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

3. Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017
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Annexure to AGM Notice 

Additional Information on Director recommended for appointment/ re-appointment as 
required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015  

1. Appointment of Mr. Vali Najmuddin Mithiborwala:

Name of the Director Vali Najmuddin Mithiborwala 
DIN 00171255 
Age 53 years 
Brief Resume (including 
qualificationand experience) and nature 
of expertise in functional areas 

Mr. Vali N Mithiborwala has a graduate 
degree from Mumbai University and has 
more than 31 years of experience in 
Industrial products industry. 

Directorships held in other public 
Companies [excluding foreign  
and private Companies] 

Nil 

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit & 
Stakeholders Relationship Committees of 
other Public Companies 

Nil 

Number of shares held in the Company 
as on March 31, 2018 

 4,59,300 Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each 

Inter-se relationship with other Directors Mr. Vali Najmuddin Mithiborwala is brother 
of Mr. Saleh Najmuddin Mithiborwala. 

ROUTE MAP TO THE 27TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING VENUE 

Venue : Aghai (Via) Kalyan Railway Station, Thane, Maharashtra 421301. 

Distance from Atgaon Railway Station : 16.2 km 



ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LIMITED 

IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION 

GREEN INITIATIVE 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, notice of General Meetings, Annual Report and 

other important communications may be sent by electronic mode to the members of the Company. 

To support green initiative, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to provide their e­

mail Id to the Company and also update their e-mail id, if there is a change. 

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to update their e-mail id with the 

Depository Participants (DPs). 

We are confident that you will support this green initiative of not printing the Annual Report on paper. 

However if you so desire, you can request for physical copy of the Annual Report by marking your 

request to compliance.ovpl@gmail.com 

DIVIDEND 

Members who have not yet registered their bank details for receiving dividend in electronic mode shall 

register the same at earliest to enable the Company to remit dividend by electronic transfer. 

ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LIMITED 

CIN: L02005MH1991PLC060686 

Registered Office: Aghai (Via) Kalyan Railway Station, Thane, Maharashtra 421301 

Tel No.: (022) 61389400 Fax No.: (022) 61389401 

Website: www.ovpl.co.in E-mail: compliance.ovpl@gmail.com 

ATTENDANCE SUP 

27th Annual General Meeting on Thursday, August 23, 2018 at 12.30 p.m. 

Registered Folio No./ DP 

ID-Client ID : 

Name and Address of the 

Member : 

Name of Joint holder(s) : 

No. of Equity Shares held : 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 

Thursday, August 23, 2018 at 12.30 p.m. at Aghai (Via) Kalyan Railway Station, Thane-421301, 

Maharashtra. 

Name of the Member / Proxy 

Notes: 

1. Only Member/ Proxy holder can attend the meeting.

Signature of Member /Proxy 

2. Please fill up the details in this Attendance Slip and hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of the

Meeting Hall.
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ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS LIMITED 

ORIENTAL VENEER PRODUCTS UMITED 

CIN: L02005 M H 1991 PLC060686 

Registered Office: Aghai (Via) Kalyan Railway Station, Thane, Maharashtra 421301 

Tel No.: (022) 61389400 Fax No.: (022) 61389401 

Website: www.ovpl.co.in E-mail: compliance.ovpl@gmail.com 

PROXY FORM- MGT-11 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the member (s): ________________________ _ 

Registered address : __________________________ _ 

E-mail Id : _____________________________ _

Client Id/ Regd. Folio No : ________________________ _ 

DP ID : ____________________________ _ 

I/We, being the member (s) of ...................................... shares of Oriental Veneer Products Limited, hereby 
appoint 

1. Name:..................................................................... Address : ....................................................................................... . 
E-mail Id:................................. Signature: ....................................................... , or failing him 

2. Name: ........................................................................ Address : ............................................................................ . 
E-mail Id:................................. Signature: ......................................................... , or failing him 

3. Name: ........................................................................ Address : ............................................................................ . 
E-mail Id:................................. Signature: ......................................................... , or failing him 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 27thAnnual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, August 23, 2018 at 12.30 p.m. at Aghai (Via) 
Kalyan Railway Station, Thane-421301, Maharashtra and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated here in below: 

Item Resolution 

No. 

Ordinary Business 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 together with the Reports of the Board of

Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 together with Report of Auditors
thereon.
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